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Carlstadt Board of Education Pamela Baxley
550 Washington Street Business Administrator / Board Secretary
Carlstadt, New Jersey 07072

October 2, 2013

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Carlstadt Board of Education
County of Bergen, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Carlstadt Board of Education for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013, is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disciosures, rests with the management
of the Carlstadt Board of Education. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in
this repott is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly
the financial position and results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures
necessary to enable the reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have
been included.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. Carlstadt Board of Education’s
MD&A can be found immediately following the “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The comprehensive annual financial report is presented in four sections: introductory, financial,
statistical and single audit. The introductory section includes this transmittal letter, the District's
organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial section includes the basic
financial statements and schedules, as well as the auditor’s report thereon. The statistical section
includes selected financial and demographic information, generally presented on a malti-year basis.
Information related to the single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure
and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and recommendations are
included in the single audit section of this report.

The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the
Single Audit Act Amendments and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
“Audits of State and Local Governments” and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB,
“Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid Payments”.
Information related to this single audit, including the auditors’ report on the internal control
structure and compliance with applicable laws and regulations and findings and
recommendations, are included in the single audit section of this report.

1) REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: Carlstadt Board of Education is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as established by NCGA Statement No. 3,
All funds of the District are included in this report. The Caristadt Board of Education and all its
schools constitute the District's reporting entity.




Carlstadt Board of Education Pamela Baxiey
550 Washington Street Business Administrator / Board Secretary
Carlstadt, New Jersey 07072

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through
8. These include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. The District
completed the 2012-2013 fiscal year with an average daily enrollment of 599 students, which is 19
students more than the previous year's enrollment. The following details the changes in the average
daily enroliment of the District over the last ten years,

Average

Fiscal Dyaily Percent
Year Earolliment Change
2012-13 569 3.28%
2011-12 580 (2.03) %
2010-11 562 2.96%
2009-10 575 (1.20)%
2008-09 582 2.64%
2007-08 567 5.78%
2006-07 536 2.10%
2003-06 525 3.35%
2004-05 508 2.12)%
2003-04 519 1.76%

2} ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: Developmentally the Carlstadt area in general
has leveled off and industrial growth is rather minimal. A commercial initiative is imminent in the
neighboring community of East Rutherford. It is projected that this project will take anywhere from
I to 3 years to complete. The project should provide a number of job opportunities for people in the
neighboring communities, including Carlstadt. The District does not anticipate any real change in
the student population as a result of this commercial venture.

3 MAJOR INTTTATIVES:

During the 2012-2013 school year several major initiatives were undertaken. Investigative
projects were undertaken to help determine the source of the leakage in the new school. Moneys
were put into the maintenance reserve for the purpose of mitigating the water problems in the
upcoming year. Additional student computers and new wireless capabilities were added in
anticipation of new technological needs for PARC, We have also made upgrades to the school
security systems by adding new security software and digital cameras,

We continue to focus on the demands and training requirements of the new legislation for teacher
evaluations. The common core has now become the driving force for curriculum. Carlstadt
strives to operate with fiscal responsibility as dictated by both these initiatives.

4) INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for
establishing and maintaining an internal contro! structure designed to ensure that the assets of the
District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse, and to ensure that adequate accounting data are
compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these chjectives are met.

ii




Carlstadt Board of Education Pamela Baxley
550 Washington Street Business Administrator / Board Secretary
Carlstadt, New Jersey 07072

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the
benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and
judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with appficable laws and
regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic
evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of
the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial assistance
programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and
regulaticns.

5) BUDGETARY CONTROLS: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains
budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal
provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality.
Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt
Service Fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in the financial
secfion,

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line
item basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations
of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as
assigned fund balance at June 30, 2013.

6) ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as promulgated by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is
organized on the basis of funds. These funds are explained in "Notes to the Basic Financial
Statements'.

7) CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state
statute as detailed in "Notes to the Basic Financial Statements". The District has adopted a cash
management plan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from
loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act ("GUDPA™). GUDPA
was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds
only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance with
the Act,

§) RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board carried various forms of insurance, including but not
limited to general liability, automobile Hability, hazard and theft insurance on property and contents,
and fidelity bonds.

%) OTHER INFORMATION: State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified public
accounts or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Lerch, Vinci, and Higgins,
LLP, was selected by the Board. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state statutes,

iii
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550 Washington Street Business Administrator / Board Secretary
Carlstadt, New Jersey 07072

the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of the Single Audit Act of 1984 as amended
and the related OMB Circular A-133 and state Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditor’s
report on the basic financial statements and combining and individual fund statements and
schedules is included in the financial section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically
to the single audit are included in the single audit section of this report.

10) ACKNOWLEDCMENTS:

We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Carlstadt School Board for their
concern in providing fiscal accountability to the citizens and taxpayers of the school district and
thereby contributing their full support to the development and maintenance of our financial
operation. The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient
and dedicated services of our financial and accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Pamela Baxley 5

Business Administrator/Board Secretary
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

EDWARD N. KERE, CPA
LORIT. MANUKIAN, CPA, PSA
Honorable President and Members MARK SACC, CPA

of the Board of Trustees
Carlstadt Board of Education
Carlstadt, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Carlstadt Board of Education as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board
of Education’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
i P

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States and audit requirements as prescribed by the Oftfice of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions. '
17-17 ROUTE 208 ® FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410 ® TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 ® FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWW.LVHCPA.COM
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to previously present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Carlstadt Board of Education as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion
and analysis and budgetary comparison information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Carlstadt Board of Education’s basic financial statements, The introductory section, combining fund financial
stafements, financial schedules, statistical section, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of
expenditures of state financial assistance as required by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are
not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Carlstadt Board of Education.

The combining fund financial statements, schedule of expenditures of federal awards and schedule of expenditures
of state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In
our opinion, the combining fund financial statements, schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial
assistance are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

The introductory section, financial schedules and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinien or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by GovemmeritAuditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 2, 2013 on our
consideration of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and

2




compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
Certified Public Accountants
hlic School Accountants

F/

i

nna L. Japhet

Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314

Fair Lawn, New Jersey
October 2, 2013
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

This discussion and analysis of the Carlstadt School District’s financial performance provides an overall
review of its financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The intent of this is to look at the
District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements and
notes to enhance their understanding of the District’s financial performance,

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information
specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.
Certain comparative information between the current year (2012-2013) and the prior year (2011-2012) is
required to be presented in the MD&A.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2012-2013 fiscal year include the following:

e The assets of the Carlstadt Board of Education exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal
year by $6,588,083 (net position).

e General revenues accounted for $10,788,080 or 85 percent of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and contributions accounted for
$1,823,846 or 15 percent of total revenues of $12,611,926.

s The School District had $12,091,907 in expenses; only $1,823,846 of these expenses are offset by
program specific charges for services, grants or contributions. General revenues (primarily taxes)
of $10,788,080 were adequate to provide for these programs.

¢ Among governmental funds, the General Fund had $10,388,009 in revenues and $10,019,946 in
expenditures, The General Fund’s fund balance increased by $368,156 from $644,752 at June 30,
2012 t0 $1,012,908 at June 30, 2013.

* As of the close of the current fiscal year, the District’s governmental funds reported a combined
ending balance of $1,021,952. The combined fund balance increased by $313,515 from the prior
year.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These
statements are organized so that the reader can understand the District as an entire operating entity.
The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of
the entire District, presenting both an aggregate view of the District’s finances and a longer-term view
of those finances. Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds,
these statements show how services were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for
future spending. The fund financial statements also look at significant funds. The General Fund is by
far the most significant fund.



CARLSTADT BOARD OF ERPUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Reporting the School District as a Whole
Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this document reports on all funds used by the District to provide programs and activities, the
view of the District as a whole looks at all financial transactions and ask the question, “How did we
do financially during 20137 The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answer
that question. These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, labilities and
deferred inflows of resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by
most private-sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s
revenues and expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net position and changes in the position. This
change is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, its financial
position improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors. Non-
financial factors include the District’s property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting
revenue growth, facility condition, required educational programs and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two
distinct kinds of activities:

» Governmental Activities — All programs and services are reported here including instruction,
support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil transportation and
extracurricular activities.

o Business-Type Activity — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to
recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service enterprise fund is
reported as a business activity.

Reporting the District’s Most Significant Funds
Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the District’s funds. The District’s
governmental funds include General Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund and Debt
Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, These funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the District’s general government operations and the basic services it provides.
Governmental fund information helps the reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance educational programs. The relationship (or
differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the
Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is reconciled in the financial statements.




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Enterprise Fund

The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities; therefore, these

statements are essentially the same.

Internal Service Fund

The internal service fund uses the accrual accounting basis and the economic resources focus. This
fund is included as part of the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements.

The District as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position provides one perspective of the District as a whole. Net position may

serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

Table 1 provides a summary of the District’s net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Current Assets
Capital Assets, net of accumulated depraciation

Total Assets

Long-Term liabilities
Other Liabilities

Total Liabilitics

Net Investment inn Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

Table 1

Statement of Net Position

as of June 30, 2013 and 2012

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 012 2013 2012
$ 1,087,034 5. 763,643 $ 60,525 § 86,115 § 1147579 § 849,758
25,390,654 25,932 853 46,223 51,883 25,436,877 25,984,736
26,477,708 26,696,496 {06,748 137,998 26,584,456 26,834,494
19,799,996 20,574,849 19,799,996 20,574,849
196,377 191,581 - - 196,377 191,581
19,996,373 20,766,430 - - 19,996,373 20,766,430
5,656,821 5,461,934 46,223 51,883 5,703,044 5,513,817
418,012 242,998 418,012 242,998
406,502 225,134 60,525 86,115 467,027 311,249
$ 6481335 § 5930066 § 106748 $ 137,998 § 6,588,083 § 6,068,064

The District’s combined net position as of June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $6,588,083 and $6,068,064,

respectively.
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CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Table 2 shows changes in net position for fiscal years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012,

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions
General Revenues

Property Taxes
Other

Total Revenues

Expenses
Instruction
Reguiar
Speciai Education
Other Instruction
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics
Support Services
Student and [nstruction Related Services
Schooi Administrative Services
General Administrative Services
Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation

Business Sves/Central Services/Admin. Info Tech.

Interest on Long-Term Debt
Food Services

Total Expenses
Change in Net Position
Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

Table 2
Change in Net Position
For The Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Business-
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 012
$ 48,375 § 39400 § 202,079 $ 207,542 § 250,434 § 245942
1,457,898 1,257,255 115,494 100,089 1,573,392 1,357,344
10,759,913 10,601,303 14,759,913 10,601,303
27,997 38,991 170 18 28,167 39,009
12,294,183 11,936,949 317,743 307,649 12,611,926 12,244,598
5,948,088 3,187,427 5,948,088 5,187,427
1,257,712 1,284,951 1,257,712 1,284,951
252,509 312,235 252,509 312,235
26,917 19,583 26,917 19,583
1,072,946 979,154 1,072,946 079,134
326,949 321,801 329,949 321,801
438,073 433,145 438,073 433,145
999,440 1,550,582 999 440 1,550,582
125,624 181,371 125,624 181,371
395,054 409,172 395,054 409,172
896,602 927,873 896,602 627,873
- - 348,993 285,404 348,993 285,404
11,742,914 11,607,294 348,993 285,404 12,091,907 11,892,698
551,269 329,655 {31,250) 22,245 520,019 351,900
5,930,066 5,600,411 137,998 115,753 6,068,004 5,716,164
$ 6,481,335 $5930,066 $ 106,748 $ 137,998 § 6,588,083 § 6,068,064




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013
Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirement to annually seek voter
approval for District operations. Property taxes made up 87 percent of revenues for governmental
activities for the Carlstadt School District in fiscal year 2013. The District’s governmental activities total
revenues were $12,294,183 for the year ended June 30, 2013, an increase of $357,234 from the previous
year. Federal, state, and local grants/aid accounted for 12 percent of revenue. The balance of revenues is
miscellaneous income which includes investment earnings.

The total cost of all governmental activities programs and services was $11,742,914. The District’s
expenses are predominantly related to educating and caring for students, Instruction totaled $7,485,226
(64%) of total expenditures. Student support services, exclusive of administration and interest on long-
term debt, total $2,198,010 or (19%) of total expenditures. The District’s total governmental activities
expenses increased $135,620 over the amount of 2011/2012 expenses.

Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities (food service program) were comprised of charges for
services and federal reimbursements.

» Food service expenses exceeded revenues by $31,250,

¢ Charges for services represent 64% percent of revenue. This represents amounts paid for daily
lunch service.

s State and Federal reimbursement for school breakfast and lunch was $115,494 or 36 percent of
total revenues.



CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net Cost of Governmental Activities

The District’s total cost of services was $11,742,914 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, After
applying program revenues derived from charges for services of $48,375 and operating grants and
contributions of $1,457,898 the net cost of services of the District is $10,236,641. See Table 3.

Table 3
Total and Net Cost of Governmental Activities

For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services
2013 2012 2013 2012
Instruction
Regular 3 5,948,088 % 5,187427 § 5,112,374 $ 4,504,237
Special Education 1,257,712 1,284,951 711,373 821,951
Other Instruction 252,509 312,235 216,207 198,499
School Sponsored Activities and Athletics 26,917 19,583 23,072 17,098
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 1,072,946 979,154 1,042,402 964,839
School Administrative Services 326,949 321,801 301,323 301,872
General Administrative Services 438,073 433,145 438,073 433,145
Plant Operations and Maintenance 999,440 1,550,582 982,247 1,550,582
Pupil Transportation 125,624 181,371 117,912 181,371
Business Services/Central Sves./Admin. Info. 395,054 409,172 395,054 409,172
Interest on Long-Term Debt 896,602 927,873 896,602 927,873
Total $ 11,742,914 § 11,607,294 $ 10,236,641 § 10,310,639

Instruction expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupﬂs and the interactions
between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities.

Student and instruction related services include the activities involved with assisting staff with the content
and process of teaching to students, including curriculum and staff development.

General administration, school administration, and business include expenses associated with
administrative and financial supervision of the District.

Operation and maintenance of facilities involve keeping the school grounds, buildings, and equipment in
an effective working condition, including energy costs. The cost also includes the depreciation expense
of the building and all of the building improvements.

Pupil transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as
well as to and from school activities, as provided by state law.



CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. [n particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the District as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds as well. Asthe
District completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined fund balance of $1,021,952. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the fund balance was $708,437.

Revenues for the District’s governmental funds were $12,294,183, while total expenses were
$11,980,668.

General Fund - The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the District and includes the primary
operations in providing educational services to students from grades K-8 including pupil transportation
activities and capital outlay projects.

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund Revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30, ‘
2013 and 2012.

Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30,2013 June 30, 2012 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Local Sources
Property Tax Levy $ 90093292 3§ 8940482 § 152,810 2%
Interest 3,391 3,792 (401) -11%
State/Federal
Sources 1,223,141 1,000,071 223,070 22%
Miscellaneous 68,183 74,401 (6,216) -8%
Total General Fund Revenues $ 10,388,009 § 10018746 % 369,263 4%

Total General Fund Revenues increased by $369,263 or 4% over the previous year,

10




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management's Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

General Fund (Continued)
Local property taxes increased by 2% over the previous year,

State/federal revenues increased $223,070 or 22% from the previous year largely attributable to the
additional allocation of categorical state aid for the District in 2012/2013 as well as an increase in the
State of New Jersey’s contribution to pension costs and post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the
Carlstadt School District.

Miscellaneous income decreased largely attributable to a decrease in miscellaneous revenue such as
refunds and reimbursements,

The following schedule presents a summary of General Fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June
30,2013 and 2012.

Amount of Percent
Year Ended Year Ended Increase Increase
June 30,2013 June 30,2012 {(Decrease) (Decrease)

Instruction $ 6,691,931 $ 6445721 § 246210 4%
Support Services 3,234,414 3,297,908 (63,494) 2%
Debt Service 22,895 23,628 (733) -3%
Capital Outlay 70,706 60,316 - 10,390 17%

Total Expenditures $ 10019946 $ 9827573 § 192,373 2%

Total General Fund expenditures increased $192,273 or 2% from the previous year.

In 2012-2013 General Fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded expenses by $368,156. Asa
result, total fund balance increased to $1,012,908 at June 30, 2013. After deducting statutory transfers
and reserves, the unassigned fund balance decreased slightly from $248,738 at June 30, 2012 to $242,373
at June 30, 2013,

Special Reverue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund includes all restricted Federal, State and Local
sources utilized in the operations of the district in providing educational services to students with special
needs.

Revenues of the Special Revenue Fund were $239,460, for the year ended June 30, 2013, Federal sources
accounted for all 98% Special Revenue Fund’s revenue. The balance ($4,703) of the revenues come from

{ocal donations.

Total Special Revenue Fund revenues decreased $17,724 or 7% from the previous year. Federal sources
decreased $19,361 while local sources increased $1,637.

11
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CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Special Revenue Fund (Continued)

Expenditures of the Special Revenue Fund were $239,460. Instructional expenditures were $219,595
(92%) of total expended for the year ended June 30, 2013. The balance of the expenditures (§19,865)
were student and instruction related services.

Capital Projects - The capital projects expenditures and other financing uses exceeded revenues by
$54,641 resulting in a fund balance of $8,167 at June 30, 2013. This decrease in fund balance is
attributable to expenditures relating to the construction of the new pre-kindergarten to 8™ grade school in
the District. As of June 30, 2013, the entire fund balance of $8,167 has been earmarked for outstanding
commitments remaining on the construction project.

Proprietary Funds

The District maintains an Enterprise Fund to account for activities, which are supported in part through
user fees.

Enterprise Fund - The District uses an Enterprise Fund to report activities related to the Food Services
program. The District’s Enterprise Fund provides the same type of information found in the district-wide
financial statements, business-type activities, but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of this
Fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the District’s business-type activities. The
expenses exceeded the revenues by $31,250 resulting in net position of $106,748 at June 30, 2013 down
from the balance of $137,998 at June 30, 2012. ‘

Internal Service Fund — The District uses an Internal Service Fund to report the activities that provide
services to other programs; including other Boards of Education. The District’s shared services
agreements relating to Technology Support Services are included in this fund. The District has
discontinued the agreement formerly accounted for in this fund. There was no activity for the 2012/2013
year.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

The District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey Department of Education guidelines, and is
based on accounting for certain transactions on the basis of cash receipts, disbursements and
encumbrances. The most significant budgetary fund is the General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget several times. These budget

amendments were from implementing budgets for specially funded projects, which include both federal
and State grants, and reinstating prior year purchase orders being carried over.

12




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CARLSTADT, NEW JERSEY

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2013 for its governmental activities amounts to
$25,390,654 (net of accumulated depreciation) and $46,223 for business-type activities. The capital
assets consist of land, land improvements, buildings, building improvements, computers, specialized
machinery and various other types of equipment. Depreciation charges for fiscal year 2012-2013
amounted to $667,546 for governmental activities and $5,660 for business-type activities.

Table A-6
Capital Assets as of June 30, 2013 and 2012
{Net of Aceumulated Depreciation)

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
013 2012 2013 2012

Land _ $ 188,036 $ 183,036
Improvements Other Than Building 260,447 279,005
Building and Building Improvements 24,519,719 25,031,375
Machinery and Equipment 422 452 434437 § 46,223 3 51,883

Total Capital Assets, Net $ 25,390,654 $ 25532853 §% 46,223 b 51,883

Additional information on the District’s capital assets are presented in Note 4 of this report.

LONG TERM LIABILITIES

At year end, the District’s long-term liabilities consisted of compensated absences payable of $54,083,
bonds payable of $19,742,000 and capital lease payable of $3,913.

Additional information of the District’s long-term liabilities is presented in Note 4 of this report.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES

Currently, the District is in stable financial condition. Everyone associated with Carlstadt Board of
Education is grateful for the community support.

Many factors were considered by the District’s administration during the process of developing the fiscal
year 2012-2013 budget. The primary factors were the District’s projected student population, anticipated
state and federal aid as well as increasing salary and related benefit costs.

These indicators were considered when adopting the budget for fiscal year 2013-2014. Budgeted
expenditures in the General Fund increased 4 percent to $9,778,678 in fiscal year 2013-2014.

13
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors
with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the
money it receives. [f you have questions about this report or need additional information contact the
School Business Administrator, Carlstadt Board of Education, 550 Washington Street, Carlstadt, NJ
07072.

14



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables, net

Inventory
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
Accrued Interest Payable

Unearned Revenue

Noncurrent Liabilities

Due Within One Year
Due Beyond One Year

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Other Purpose
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

EXHIBIT A-1

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

$ 1,041,510 $ 45,485 1,086,995
45,544 13,778 59,322
1,262 1,262
188,036 188,036
25,202,618 46,223 25,248,841
26,471,708 106,748 26,584,456
42,006 42,006
145,170 145,170
9,201 9,201
813,913 813,913
18,986,086 - 18,986,086
19,996,376 - 19,996,376
5,656,821 46,223 5,703,044
877 877
12,135 12,135
405,000 405,000
406,502 60,525 467,027
§ 6,481,335 $ 106,748 6,588,083
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Eguivalents

Due from Other Funds
Receivables from Cther Governments

Totai Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Restricted Fund Balance

Reserved Excess Surplus-Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures

Reserved Excess Surplus
Capital Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Capital Projects Fund
Debt Service Fund

Assigned Fund Balance
Year End Encumbrances

Unassigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-1

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmentat
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fands
3 1,018,478 5 8,260 % 877 § 1,027,615
10,541 10,541
16,180 3§ 28,977 - - 45,157
3 1,045,199 § 28,977 % 8,260 § 877§ 1,083,313
$ 32291 3% 9,715 3 42,006
10,061 § 93 10,154
- 9,201 - - 9,201
32,291 28,977 93 - 61,361
70,724 70,724
205,408 205,408
12,133 12,135
405,600 405,600
8,167 3,167
$ 877 877
77,268 77,268
242,373 - - - 242,373
1,012,908 - 8,167 877 1,021,952
3 1,045,199 § 28977 % 8,260 § 877
Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement of
net position (A-1) are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $29,549,074 and the accumulated depreciation
is $4,158,420, 25,390,654
The district has financed capital assets through the issuance of serial
bonds. The interest accrual at year end is: (145,170)
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as
lighilities in the funds {(see Note 2) (19,799,996
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are
inchided with governmental activities. 13,895
Net Position of Governmental Activities -3 6,481,335

The accomparntying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Stateraent
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-2

Spectal Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
REVENUES
Local Sources
Property Tax Levy 9,093,292 $ 1,666,621 § 10,756,913
Tuition - Pre-Schoal 48,375 48,375
Interest 3,391 3 93 3,484
Miscetlaneous 19,810 % 4,703 - - 24,513
Total - Local Sources 9,164,868 4,703 93 1,666,621 10,836,285
State Sources 1,223,141 1,223,141
Federal Sources - 234,757 - - 234,757
Total Revenues 10,388,609 239,460 93 1,666,621 12,294,183
EXPENDITURES
Current .
Regular Instruction 5,302,741 71,647 5,374,388
Special Education Instruction 1,113,419 144,293 [,257,712
Other Instruction 248 854 3,655 252,509
School-Sponsored Activities and Athletics 26,917 26,917
Support Services
Student and Instruction Related Services 1,053,081 19,865 1,072,940
General Administrative Services 438,073 438,073
School Administrative Services 329,949 329,949
Plant Operations and Maintenance 892,633 862,633
Pupil Transportation 125,624 125,624
Business Services/Central Svcs/
Admin, Info. Tech. 395,054 395,054
Debt Service
Principal 22,814 765,000 787,814
Interest 81 801,621 901,702
Capital Outlay 70,706 - 54,641 - 125,347
Total Expenditures 10,019,946 239,460 54,641 1,666,621 11,980,663
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expendifures 368,063 - (54,548) - 313,515
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In 93 93
Transfers Out - - {93) - (93)
Total Other Financing Sources and Uses 93 - {93) - .
Net Change in Fund Balances 368,136 - (34,641) - 313,515
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 644,752 - 62,808 877 708,437
Fund Balance , End of Year 1,612,908 3 - 3 8,167 3§ 877 3% 1,021,952

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
ILLUSTRATIVE RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF
REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
WITH THE DISTRICT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

Total Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibi¢ B-2) %

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different becanse:

Capital outlays to purchase or build capital assets are reported in governmental
funds as expenditures, However, for governmental activities those costs are
shown in the statement and allocated over their estimated useful lives as annual
depreciation expense, This is the amount by which depreciation exceeds capital outlay

in the current period.

Capital OQutlay 5 125,347
Depreciation Expense (667,546)
In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses - compensated absences are measured
by the amounts earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used {paid):
Net Increase in Compensated Absences
Repayment of debt is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term
liabilities in the statement of net position and does not affect the statement of activities.
Bond Principal 765,000
Capital Lease 22,814

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported it the
governmental funds because interest is recorded as an expenditures in the funds when it is due, and
thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however, interest
expense is recognized as the fnterest accrues, regardless of when it is due.

Decrease in accrued interest

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit A-2}

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement,
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313,515

(542,199)

(12,961)

787,814

5,100

S 551269




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

EXHIBIT B-4

AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
Governmental
Business-Type Internal Service
Activities Fund
Enterprise Fund Shared Service
Food Services Apreement
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 45485 % 13,893
Intergovernmental Receivable
State 635
Federal 13,143
Inventory 1,262 -
Total Current Assets 60,525 13,895
Capital Assets
Machinery and Equipment 84,900
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (38,677) -
Total Capital Assets, Net 46,223 -
Total Assets 106,748 13,895
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 46,223
Unrestricted : 60,525 13,895
Total Net Position 5 106,748 § 13,895

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT B-5

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Governmental
Business-Type Internal Service
Activities Fund
Enterprise Fund Shared Service
OPERATING REVENUES Food Services Agreement
Charges for Services
Daily Sales
Reimbursable Programs- School Lunch Program $ 197,774
Other Sales - Ala Carte/Milk 4,305 -
Total Operating Revenues 202,079 -
OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Sales 122,171
Salaries 144,107
Employee Benefits/Payroll Taxes 12,119
Insurance 15,924
Supplies 33,637
Management Fees 15,375
Depreciation 5,660 -
Total Operating Expenses 348,993 -
Operating Loss (146,914} -
NONOPERATING REVENUES
State Sources
Schoot Lunch Program 3,297
Federal Sources
National School Lunch Program 102,743
National School Breakfast Program 9,454
Interest Earned 170 -
Total Nonoperating Revenues 115,664 -
Change in Net Position (31,250) -
Net Position, Beginning of Year 137,998 § 13,895
Net Position, End of Year 3 106,748 % 13,895

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPRIETARY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT B-6

Governmental
Business-Type Internal Service
Activities Fund
Enterprise Fund Shared Service
Food Services Agreement
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 202,079
Cash Payment for Employees Salaries and Benefits (156,226)
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goads and Services {170,568) -
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities (124,713) -
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Cash Received from State and Federal Subsidy Reimbursements 91,457 -
Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities 91,457 -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
{nterest on Investments 170 -
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 170 -
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (33,088) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 78,573 § 13,895
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 45485 § 13,895

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash
Used by Operating Activities
Operating Loss 3 (146,914) 3

Adjustments io Reconcile Operating Loss to
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

Depreciation 5,660
Non Cash Federal Assistance -
Food Distribution Program (USDA Commodities) 16,093
Change in Assets and Liabilities
Decrease in Inventory 446 -
Total Adjustments ' 22,199 -
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities $ (124,715) § -

Non-Cash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities
Value Received for Food Distribution Program $ 16,093

The accompanying Noies to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013

Private Purpose

EXHIBIT B-7

Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation Trust Fund Agency Fund
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 9 % 14,652 57,345
Total Assets 9 14,652 57,345
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Fund 387
Accounts Payable 9,327
Due to Student Groups - - 47,631
Total Liabilities - - 57,345
NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Unemployment Claims 9
Held in Trust for Private Purpose Scholarships - 14,652
Total Net Position $ 9 § 14,652

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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EXHIBIT B-8

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR. THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Private Purpose

Unemployment Scholarship
Compensation Trust Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employees § 14,407
District 19,303
Interest 5 72
Total Additions 33,715 72
DEDUCTIONS .
Unemployment Claims and Contributions 33,710 -
Total Deductions 33,710 -
Change in Net Position - 3 72
Net Position, Beginning of Year 4 14,580

Net Position, End of Year $ 9 § 14,652

The accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements are an Integral Part of this Statement
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Carlstadt Board of Education (the “Board™ or the “District”) is an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established
to function as an education institution. The Board consists of nine elected officials and is responsible for the fiscal control of
the District. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the District.
Under existing statutes, the Board's duties and powers include, but are not limited to, the development and adoption of a
school program, the establishment, organization and operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition
of school property.

The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the establishment of a
system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The reporting entity is composed of the primary government, component units, and other organizations that are included to
ensure that the financial statements of the District are not misleading. The primary government consists of all funds,
departments, boards and agencies that are not legally separate from the District. For the Carlstadt Board of Education this
includes general operations, food service, and student related activities of the District.

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the District is financially accountable. The District is
financially accountable for an organization if the District appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board
and (1) the District is able to significantly influence the programs or services performed or provided by the organization; or
"(2) the District is legally entitled to or can otherwise access the organization’s resources; the District is legally obligated or
has otherwise assumed the responsibility to finance the deficits of, or provide financial support to, the organization; or the
District is obligated for the debt of the organization. Component units may also include organizations that are fiscally
dependent on the District in that the District approves the budget, the issuance of debt or the levying of taxes. Based on the
foregoing criteria, the District has no component units. Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting
entity as a component unit,

B. New Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2013, the District adopted the following GASB statements:

s GASB 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989
FASB and AICPA Pronouncements. The objective of this statement is to incorporate into the GASB’s authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in following pronouncements issued
on or before November 30, 1989, which does not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

e GASB 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Nef position.
The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effect on a government’s net position. It alleviates
uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance where none previously existed.

e GASB 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, although not required to be implemented until next
year, the District elected to apply the statement to the current year financial statements. This Statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of
resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities.
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. New Accounting Standards (Continued)

Other accounting standards that the District is currently reviewing for applicability and potential impact on the financial
statements include:

GASB 66, Technical Corrections — 2012, an Amendment of GASB Statements 10 and 62, will be effective beginning
with the year ending June 30, 2014, The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting
for a governmental financial reporting entity by resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions and No. 62,
Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and
AICPA Pronouncements.

GASB 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, an Amendment of GASB 23, will be effective beginning with the
year ending June 30, 2014. The objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by state and local
governmental pension plans. This Statement results from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing
standards of accounting and financial reporting for pensions with regard to providing decision-useful information,
supporting assessments of accountability and interperiod equity, and creating additional transparency. This
Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 25, Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans
and Note Disclosures for Defined Comtribution Plans and No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension
plans that are administered through trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does
not expect this Statement to impact its financial statements.

GASB 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, will be effective beginning with the year ending June
30, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for pensions. It also improves information provided by state and local governmental employers about
financial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This Statement replaces the requirements of
Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local Governmental Employers, as well as the
requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pensions that are provided through pension
plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The District does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements,

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include both district-wide financial statements (based on the District as a whole) and fund
financial statements (based on specific District activities or objectives). Both the district-wide and fund financial statements
categorize activities as either governmental activities or business-type activities. While separate district-wide and fund
financial statements are presented, they are interrelated. In the district-wide financial statements, the governmental activities
column incorporates data from governmental funds and internal service funds, while business-type activities incorporate data
from the District’s enterprise funds.
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

District-Wide Financial Statements

The district-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information on
all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Board of Education. All fiduciary activities are reported only in the fund financial
statements. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. In the statement of net position,
both the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column, and (b)
reflect on a full acerual economic resource basis, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term
debt and obligations.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or other governmental entities, including other school districts, who purchase, use,
or directly benefit from goods or services provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requitements of a particular function or segment. Property taxes, unrestricted
state aid, and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the district-wide financial statements. Exceptions
to this general rule are charges between the Board’s proprietary and fiduciary funds since elimination of these charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Fund Financial Statements

Separate fund financial statements are provided for governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary activities, even though the latter
are excluded from the district-wide financial statements. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major individual
governmental and enterprise funds, each reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining
governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. The District considers all of its
governmental and enterprise funds to be major funds.

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the School District’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
District, except those to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue fund accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources legally restricted to expenditures for
specified purposes. This fund accounts for federal, state and local financial programs, with the exception of grants
for major capital projects and the child nutrition programs.

The capital projects fund accounts for the proceeds from the sale of bonds, lease purchases and other revenues used
for the acquisition or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets, other than those financed by the
proprietary funds.

"The debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal and interest on
long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

27




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continned)

C. Basis of Presentation - Financial Statements (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements (continned)

The District reports the following major proprietary fund which i§ organized to be self-supporting through user charges:

The food service fund accounts for the activities of the school cafeteria, which provides food service to students as
well as a la carte and catering services for teachers and special events.

Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

The internal service fund accounts for the shared service agreements for technology support services provided to
governmental entities on a cost reimbursement basis.

The fiduciary trust fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for the state unemployment insurance
claims, for private donations for scholarship awards, payroll related activities and student related activities which are
supported and controlled by student organizations and clubs. All resources of the fund, including any earnings on
invested resources, may be used to support the intended purpose. There is no requirement that any portion of these
resources be preserved as capital.

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year
are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as “due
to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the district-wide financial statements as “internal balances”.

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement focus and basis of
accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being measured such as current financial resources or
economic resources. The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or events for recognition in the financial
statements.

The district-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements with the exception of the agency fund which
does not have a measurement focus. All assets, all deferred outflows of resources, all liabilities and all deferred inflows of
resources associated with these operations (with the exception of the fiduciary funds) are included on the Statement of Net
Position. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (Continued)

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e. when they are both
measurable and available). Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Board considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days after year-end. Expenditures are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
basis of accounting, with the exception of debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences
and claims and judgments which are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as
expenditures in governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lcases are reported as other
financing sources.

Property taxes, tuition, unrestricted state aid, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Entitlements (formula-type
grants and aid) are recorded as revenues when all eligibility requirements are met, including any time requirements, and the
. amount is received during the petiod or within the availability period for this revenue source. Expenditure-driven grants and
similar awards (reimbursement-type grants and awards) are recognized as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have
been incurred and all other eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met, and the amount is
received during the period or within the availability period for this revenue source. All other revenue items are considered to
be measurable and available only when cash is received by the District.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in
both the district-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or
contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of
following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same
limitation. The Board has elected not to follow private-sector guidance issued subsequent to December 1, 1989,

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government’s policy to use restricted resources
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position/Fund Balance

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investmenis with original
maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments are reported at fair value and are limited by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
2, Receivables

All receivables are reported at their gross value, and where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is expected
to be uncollectibie.
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCTIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position/Fund Balanece {Continued)

3. Inventories

The cost of inventories of the governmental fund types are recorded as expenditures at the time individual inventory items
are purchased.

Food Service Fund inventories, exclusive of the federal commodities, are valued at cost, using the first-in first-out (FIFO)
method and consist of food and expendable supplies. The cost of such inventories is recorded as expenditures/expenses
when consumed rather than when purchased. The United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) commodity portion of
the Food Service Fund inventory consists of food donated by the USDA. 1t is valued at estimated market prices by the
USDA. The amount of unused commaodities at year-end is reported as uncarned revenue.

4. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities columns in the district-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Board as assets with an initial,
individual cost of $2,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. The District was able to estimate the historical
cost for the initial reporting of these capital assets through back trending. As the District construets or acquires additional
capital assets each period, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend its useful life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the
construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets
constructed.

Land and construction in progress are not depreciated. The other property, plant, and equipment of the District, as well as
the component units, is depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Land Improvements 20
Buildings 20-50
Building Improvements 20
Heavy Equipment 10-20
Office Equipment and Furniture 7-10
Computer Equipment 5
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

5. Compensated Absences

It is the District’s policy to permit employees to accumulate (with certain restrictions) earned but unused vacation, personal,
and sick leave benefits. A long-term liability of accumulated vacation, personal and sick leave and salary related payments
has been recorded in the governmental activities in the district-wide financial statements, representing the Board’s
commitment to fund such costs from future operations. Proprietary Funds accrue accumulated vacation, personal and sick
leave and salary related payments in the period that they are earned. A liability is reported in the governmental funds only to
the amount actually due at year end as a result of employee resignations and retirements,

6. Long-Term Obligations

In the district-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund type statement of net position.

7. Net Position/Fund Balance

District-Wide Statements

In the district-wide statements, there are three classes of net position:

¢ Net investment in capital assets — consists of net capital assets (cost less accumulated depreciation) reduced by
outstanding balances of related debt obligations from the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources attributable to the acquisition, construction or
improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included.

¢ Restricted net position — reports net position when constraints placed on the residual amount of noncapital assets
are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

¢ Unrestricted net position — any portion of net position not already classified as either net mvestment in capital
assets or net position — restricted is classified as net position — unrestricted.

Governmental Fund Statements

Fund balance categories are designed to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on the District’s fund balance
more transparent. These categories are compriséd of a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

F. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

7. Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

Governmental Fund Statements (Continued)

Restricted Fund Balance — Amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers (such as grantors, bondholders, and
higher levels of government), through constitutional provisions, or by enabling legislation.

Reserved Excess Swrplus — Desionated for Subsequent Year’s FExpenditures - This restriction was created in
accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30, 2012 audited excess surplus that was appropriated in the
2013/2014 original budget certified for taxes.

Reserved Excess Surplus — This restriction was created in accordance with NJSA 18A:7F-7 to represent the June 30,
2013 audited excess surplus that is required to be appropriated in the 2014/2015 original budget certified for taxes.

Capital Reserve — This restriction was created by the District in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.1 to fund future
capital expenditures (See Note 3.)

Maintenance Reserve - This restriction was created by the Board in accordance with NJAC 6A:23A-14.2 to
accumulate funds for the required maintenance of school facilities in accordance with the EFCA (NJSA 18A:7G-9)
for a thorough and efficient education.

Capital Projects — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for capital acquisitions and improvements in the
Capital Projects Fund.

Debt Service — Represents fund balance restricted specifically for the repayment of long-term debt principal and interest
in the Debt Service Fund.

Assigned Fund Balance — Amounts a government intends to use for a specific purpose; intent can be expressed by the
governing body or by an official or body to which the governing body delegates the authority.

Year-End Encumbrances — Represent outstanding purchase orders for goods or services approved by management for
specific purposes from available resources of the current year for which the goods and materials have not yet been
received or the services have not yet been rendered at June 30.

Unassigned Fund Balance - Represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific
purposes within the governmental funds.
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Coatinued)

E. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Position/Fund Balance (Continued)

8. Reclassifications

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year’s
presentation.

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses

1. Program Revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues in the district-wide statement of activities include 1) charges to customers or
applicants for goods or services, provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions,
Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenues
include all property taxes, unrestricted state aid, investment earnings and miscellaneous revenues.

2. Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied pursuant to law and are collected by the municipality and are transferred to the District as
requested. Property tax revenue is recognized in the year they are levied and become available. Property taxes collected in
advance of the year-end for which they are levied and transferred to the District are reported as deferred inflows of
resources. The tax bills are mailed annually in June by the municipal tax collector and are levied and due in four quarterly
installments on August 1, November 1, February 1 and May | of the fiscal year. When unpaid, taxes or any other municipal
lien, or part thereof, on real property, remains in arrears on Aptil 1¥ in the year following the calendar year levy when the
same became in arrears, the tax collector of the municipality shall, subject to the provisions of New Jersey Statute, enforce
the lien by placing the property on a tax sale. The municipality may institute annual “in rem” tax foreclosure proceedings to
enforce the tax collection or acquisition of title to the property.

3. Tuition Revenues and Expenditures

Tuition Revenues - Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs are determined and certified by the State Department of Education.

Tuition Expenditures - Tuition charges for the fiscal years 2011-2012 and 2012-2013 were based on rates established by the
receiving district. These rates are subject to change when the actual costs have been certified by the State Department of
Education.

33




CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

F. Revenues and Expenditures/Expenses (Continuned)

4, Proprietary Funds, Operating and Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating itemis. Operating revenues and expenses
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the food service enterprise fund, and of the government’s
internal service fund are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. Federal and State subsidies for
the food service operation are considered nonoperating revenues.

NOTE 2 RECONCILIATION OF DISTRICT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the district-wide
statement of net position

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance — total governmental funds and net
position — governmental activities as reported in the district-wide statement of net position. One element of that
reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported in the funds.” The details of this $19,799,996 difference are as follows:

Bonds Payable $ 19,742,000
Capital Leases Payable 3,913
Compensated Absences 54,083

Net adjustment to increase fund balance - total governmental
funds to arrive at net position - governmental activities $ 19,799,996

NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

In accordance with the requirements of the New Jersey Department of Education (“the Department”), the District annually
prepares its operating budget for the forthcoming year. The budget, except for the general fund and special revenue fund,
which is more fully explained below and in the notes to the required supplementary information, is prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and serves as a formal plan for expenditures
and the proposed means for financing them. Capital lease transactions are accounted for on the GAAP basis.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

Prior to the 2012/2013 budget year, the annual budget was required to be voted upon at the annual school election held on
the third Tuesday in April. On January 17, 2012, Chapter 202 of the Laws of P.L. 2011 was approved which estabiished
procedures for moving the date of a school district’s annual school election from April to the general election in November.
Under the new law, districts that have their school board members elected in November no longer have to submit their
budgets that meet levy cap requirements for voter approval beginning with the 2012/2013 budget year. Only a school board
decision to exceed the tax levy cap would require voter approval for the additional amount on the November ballot. On
January 24, 2012, the Board adopted a resolution to move its annual election to the date of the general elections in
accordance with the law; therefore voter approval of the annual budget is not required.

Budget adoptions and amendments are recorded in the District's board minutes. The budget is amended by the Board of
Trustees as needed throughout the year. The budget for revenues, other resources, other uses, and fund balances is prepared
by fund source and amount. The budget for expenditures is prepared by fund, program, function, object and amount. The
legal level of budgetary control is established at the line item account within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as
the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant o the minimum chart of accounts referenced in NJ.A.C.
6:20-2A.2(m)1. The Board approved several budget transfers during 2012/2013. During 2012/2013 the Board increased the
original General Fund budget by $93,110 and the original Special Revenue Fund budget by $57,324. The increase in the
General Fund was funded by the prior year Extraordinary Aid allocation and the re&pproprlatmn of prior year encumbrances.

The increase in the Special Revenue Fund was funded by additional grant awards.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management contro! device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
in the Notes to Required Supplementary Information (RSI). Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of
formal budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in the governmental funds. Under encumbrance accounting, purchase orders,
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable
appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds other than the special revenue fund are reported as committed
and/or assigned fund balances at fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments
related to unperformed contracts for goods and services which are reappropriated and honored during the subsequent fiscal
year.

B. Capital Reserve

A capital reserve account was established by the District on October 12, 2000, The accumulation of funds will be used for
capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve is maintained in the general fund and its activity
is included in the general fund annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan
(LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district may increase the balance in the capital reserve by
appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board resolution at year end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts or both. A district may also appropriate additional
amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at budget time or by a
special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6:23A-
14.1(g), the balance in the reserve cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its
approved LRFP.
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NOTE 3 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

B. Capital Reserve (Continued)

The activity of the capital reserve for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows:

Balance, July 1, 2012 $ 12,121

Increased by:

Interest Farnings 14
Balance, June 30, 2013 5 12,135

C. Calculation of Excess Surpius

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended, the restricted fund balance for Reserved Excess Surplus is a required
calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA).
New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance in excess of 2% of budget expenditures at
the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their
subsequent year’s budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2013 is $276,132. Of this amount, $70,724 was
designated and appropriated in the 2013/2014 original budget certified for taxes and the remaining amount of $205,408
will be appropriated in the 2014/2015 original budget certified for taxes.

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Cash Deposits and Investments

Cash Deposits

The Board's deposits are insured through either the Federal Deposit Insurance Cotporation (FDIC), Securities Investor
Protection Corporation (SIPC) or New Jersey's Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). The Board is required
to deposit their funds in a depository which is protecting such funds pursuant to GUDPA. The New Jersey Goveramental
Unit Deposit Protection Act requires all banks doing business in the State of New Jersey to pledge collateral equal to at least
5% of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of its public funds in excess of the lesser of
75% of its capital funds or $200 million for all deposits not covered by the FDIC.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

A. Cash Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Cash Deposits (Continued)

Bank balances for interest bearing accounts are insured up to $250,000 in the aggregate by the FDIC for each bank. Under
the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act, temporary unlimited deposit insurance coverage was
provided for non-interest bearing accounts from December 31, 2010 through December 31, 2012, SIPC replaces cash claims
up to a maximum of $250,000 for each failed brokerage firm. At June 30, 2013, the book value of the Board's deposits were
$1,159,001 and bank and brokerage firm balances of the Board’s deposits amounted to $1,413,742.  The Board's deposits
which are displayed on the various fund balance sheets as “cash and cash equivalents” are categorized as:

Bank
Depository Account Balance
Insured $ 1,413,742

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits — Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The Board does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. However, all deposits are
adequately insured.

Investments

The Board is permitted to invest public funds in accordance with the types of securities authorized by N.J.S.A. 18A:20-37.
Examples of the allowable investments are bonds or other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the
United States of America, Government Money Market Mutual Funds, bonds or other obligations of the school district or
bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located, Local Government investment
pools, and agreements or the repurchase of fully collateralized securities, if transacted in accordance with the above statute.

As of June 30, 2013, the Board had no outstanding investments.

Investment and interest earnings in the Capital Projects Fund are assigned to the General Fund in accordance with Board
policy.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

B. Receivables

Receivables as of June 30, 2013 for the district’s individual major funds, in the aggregate, including the applicable
allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Special Food
General Revenue Service Total
Receivables:
Intergovernmental-
Restricted § 16,180 § 28977 § 13,778 § 58935
Total Receivables $ 16,180 § 28977 § 13,778 § 58935

C. Unearned Revenue

Governmental funds report unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.
At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds

were as follows:

Special Revenue Fund

Unencumbered Grant Draw Downs $ 9,164
Grant Draw Downs Reserved for Encumbrances 37
Total Unearned Revenue for Governmental Funds $ 9,201
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 was as follows:

Balance, Batance,

Juiy 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013
Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:
Land ‘ 5 188,036 - - 3 188,036
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 188,036 - - 188.036
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings and Building Improvements 28,016,275 3§ 54,641 28,070,916
Land Improvements 371,159 371,159
Machinery and Equipment 871,848 70,706 § (23,591) 918,963
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 20,259,282 125,347 (23,58D) 29,361,038
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Building Improvements (2,984,900} (566,297 (3,551,197)
Land Improvements (92,154) (18,358) {(110,712)
Machinery and Equipment (437411 (82,691) 23,591 {496,511)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (3,514,465) (667,546) 23,591 {4,158,420)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 25,744,817 (542,199) - 25,202,618
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 25932853 3§ (542,199) § - $ 25,390,654
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

D, Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance, Balance,

July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Machinery and Equipment 3 84,900 - - $ 84,900
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 84,900 - - 84,900
Less Accumulated Pepreciation for:
Machinery and Equipment (33,017 § {5,660) - (38,677)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (33,017) {5,660) ' - (38,671
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 51,883 (5,660) - 46,223
Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 51,883 § (5',660) $ - $ 46,223

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Instruction
Regular $ 106,807
Total Instruction , 106,807
Support Services
Operations and Maintenance of Plant 560,739
Total Support Services 560,739
" Total Governmental Funds 667,546
Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities $ 667,546

Business-Type Activities:
Food Service Fund $ 5,660

5,660

&3

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-Type Activities

40



CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

E. Interfund Receivables, Pavables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2013, is as follows:

Due to/from other funds

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Special Revenue 3 10,061
General Capital Projects 93
General Payroll Agency 387
Total - $ 10,541

“The above balances are the result of revenues earned or other financing sources received in one fund which are due to
another fund and/or to cover cash balances which were in an overdraft position.

The District expects all interfund balances to be liquidated within one year.

Interfund transfers

Transfers In
General
Fund Total
Transfer Qut:
Capital Projects Fund $ 93 $ 93
Total Transfers Out 5 93 $ 93

The above transfers are the result of revenues earned and/or other financing sources received in one fund to finance
expenditures in another fund.
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

F. Leases

Capital Leases

The District is leasing copiers totaling $104,390 under capital leases. The lcases are for terms of 5 years,
The capital assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

Governmental
Activities

Machinery and Equipment $ 104,390

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2013
were as follows:

Fiscal Governmental
Year Ending June 30 : Activities
2014 $ 3,938
Total minimum lease payments 3,938
Less: amount representing interest (25)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 3,913

G. Lono-Term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

The Board issued general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities
and other capital assets. The full faith and credit of the Board are irrevocably pledged for the payment of the principal of
the bonds and the interest thereon.

Bonds payable at June 30, 2013 is comprised of the following issue:
$24,447,000, 2005 Bonds, due in annual

nstallments of $800,000 to $1,612,000
through May 1, 2030, interest at 4.25% to 4.50% $19.742 000
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The Board's schedule of principal and interest for long-term debt issued and outstanding is as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Fiscal Year Ending Bonds Payable
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2014 $ 800,000 § 871,021 § 1,671,021
2015 835,000 837,021 1,672,021
2016 870,000 801,536 1,671,536
2017 910,000 764,558 1,674,558
2018 955,000 725,884 1,680,884
2019-2023 5,440,000 2,978,719 8,418,719
2024-2028 6,775,000 1,651,500 8,426,500
2029-2030 3,157,000 214,605 3,371,605

$ 19,742,000 $  8,844844 § 28,586,844

Statutory Borrowing Power

The Board's remaining borrowing power under N.J.S. 18A:24-19, as amended, at June 30, 2013 was as follows:

3% of Equalized Valuation Basis (Municipal) 7 S 64,522,987
Less: Net Debt 19,742,181
Remaining Borrowing Power $ 44,780,806

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, was as follows:

Due
Balance, Balance, Within
July 1, 2012 Additions Reductions June 30, 2013 One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable $ 20,507,000 $ 765,000 $ 19,742,000 3 800,000
Capital Leases Payable 26,727 22,814 3,913 3,913
Compensated Absences 41,122 § 12,961 - 54,083 10,000
Governmental Activity
Long-Term Liabilities $ 20,574,849 3 12,961 3 787,814 $§ 19,799,996 § 813,913
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NOTE 4 DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS (Continued)

G. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them are
included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. Also, for the governmental activities, the liabilities for
compensated absences are generally liquidated by the general fund.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to property, general liability, automobile coverage, theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; student accident; termination of employees and
natural disasters. The Board has obtained commercial insurance coverage to guard against these events to minimize the
exposure to the District should they occur. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the statistical section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The District is 2 member of the Northeast Bergen County School Board Insurance Group (NESBIG). The Group is a risk
sharing public entity pool, established for the purpose of insuring against worker's compensation claims.

The relationship between the Board and the insurance fund is governed by a contract and by-laws that have been adopted by
resolution of each unit's governing body. The Board is contractually obligated to make all annual and supplementary
contributions to the fund, to report claims on a timely basis, cooperate with the management of the fund, its claims
administrator and attorneys in claims investigation and settlement, and to follow risk management procedures as outlined by
the fund. Members have a contractual obligation to fund any deficit of the fund attributable to a membership year during
wh1ch they were a member.

NESBIG provides its members with risk management services, including the defense of and settlement of claims and to
establish reasonable and necessary loss reduction and prevention procedures to be followed by the members. Complete.
financial statements of the insurance fund is on file with the School's Business Administrator.

There has been no 51gmﬁcant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year nor have there been any settlements in
excess of insurance coverage’s in any of the prior three years.

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the “Benefit Reimbursement
Method”. Under this plan the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid
to its former employees and charged {o its account with the State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the
State. The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for
benefits paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current and previous two years:

Fiscal
Year Ended District Employee Amount Ending
June 30 Contributions - Contributions Reimbursed Balance
2013 $ 19,303 § 14,407 b 33,710 9
2012 19,275 13,824 33,101 4
2011 19,155 13,937 33,098 2
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B. Contingent Liabilities

The District is a party defendant in some lawsuits, none of a kind unusual for a school district of its size and scope of
operation. In the opinion of the Board's Attorney the potential claims against the District not covered by insurance policies
would not materially affect the financial condition of the District.

Federal and State Awards — The Board participates in a number of federal and state programs that are fully or partially
funded by grants received from other governmental units. Expenditures financed by grants are subject to audit by the
appropriate grantor government. If expenditures are disallowed due to noncompliance with grant program regulations, the
Board may be required to reimburse the grantor government. As of June 30, 2013, significant amounts of grant expenditures
have not been audited by the various grantor agencies but the Board believes that disallowed expenditures, if any, based on
subsequent audits will not have a material effect on any of the individual governmental funds or the overall financial position
of the District.

C. Federal Arbitrage Regulations

The District is subject to Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code as it pertains to the arbitrage rebate on all tax-exempt
obligations, both long and short-term debt. Under the 1986 Tax Reform Act, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) required
that all excess earnings from investment proceeds be rebated to the IRS. Arbitrage, for purposes of these regulations, is
defined as the difference between the yield on the investment and the yield on the obligations issued. If there are excess
earnings, this amount may be required to be rebated to the IRS. At June 30, 2013, the District has not estimated its arbitrage
earnings due to the IRS, if any.

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following contributory defined benefit pubiic employee retirement
systemns (retirement systerns) covering substantially all eligible Board employees:

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) — Established in January 19553, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to
provide coverage, including post-retirement health care, to substantially all full time employees of the State or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency provided the employee is not a member of another State-administered
retirement system. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of service for pension
benefits and 25 vears for post-retirement health care coverage.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) — Established in January 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to
provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time certified teachers or professional staff of
the public school systems in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 10 years of
service for pension benefits and 25 years for post-retirement health care coverage.

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following defined contribution public employee retirement

program covering certain state and local government employees which include those Board employees who are eligible
for pension coverage.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

D. Emplovee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) — established under the provisions of Chapter 92, P.L. 2007 and
Chapter 103, P.L. 2008 to provide coverage to elected and certain appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007.
Membership is mandatory for such individuals with vesting occurring after one (1) year of membership.

Other Pension Funds

The State established and administers a Supplemental Annuity Collective Trust Fund (SACT) which is available to active
members of the State-administered retirement systems to purchase annuities to supplement the guaranteed benefits provided
by their retirement system. The state or local government employers do not appropriate funds to SACT.

The cost of living increase for PERS and TPAF, arc funded directly by each of the respective systems and are considered in
the annual actuarial calculation of the required State contribution for the system.

According to state law, all obligations of each retirement system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should any .
retirement systemn be terminated. '

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of each of the above systems. The
financial reports may be accessed via the New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website at
Www.state nj.us/treasury/pensions,

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the retirement systems are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, Employer contributions
are recognized when payable to the retirement systems. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the terms of the retirement systems.

Significant Legislation |

P.L. 2011, ¢.78, effective June 28, 2011, made various changes to the manner in which TPAF and PERS operate and to
the benefit provisions of those systems.

The legislation’s provisions impacting employee pension and health benefits include:

e For new members of TPAF and PERS hired on or after June 28, 2011 (Tier 5 members), the years of creditable
service needed for early retirement benefits increased from 25 to 30 years and the early retirement age increased
from 55 to 65.

s The eligibility age to qualify for a service retirement in the TPAF and PERS increased from age 62 to 65 for Tier
5 members.

» The annual benefit under special retirement for new PFRS members enrolled after June 28, 2011 (Tier 3
members) decreased from 65 percent of final compensation to 60 percent of final compensation after 25 years of
service and from 70 percent of final compensation to 65 percent of final compensation after 30 or more years of
service.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Significant Legislation (Continued)

e It increased the TPAF and PERS active member rates from 5.5 percent of annual compensation to 6.5 percent
plus an additional 1 percent phased-in over 7 years for members hired or reappointed on or after June 28, 2011.
For Fiscal Year 2012, the member contribution rates increased in October 2011, The phase-in of the additional
incremental member contributions for TPAF and PERS members takes place in July of each subsequent fiscal
year.

¢ The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) additional increases to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries was suspended. COLA increases may be reactivated at a future date as permitted by this law.

¢ Tt changed the method for amortizing the pension system’s unfunded accrued liability (from a level percent of pay
method to a level dollar of pay method).

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are valued at the last
reported sales price at current exchange rates, Mortgages are valued on the basis of future principal and interest payments,
and are discounted at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. The fair value of real estate investments is based on
independent appraisals. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair values.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, issues publicly available financial reports that
include the financial statements of the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund, Common Pension Fund A, Common
Pension Fund B, Common Pension Fund D and Common Pension Fund E. The financial reports may be obtained in writing
to the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Investment, P.O. Box 290, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-
0290.

Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the aggregate funded ratio for all the State administered
retirement systems including TPAF and PERS, is 67.5 percent with an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $41.7 billion.
The aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for the State-funded systems is 60.8 percent and $30.1 billion,
and the aggregate funded ratio and unfunded accrued liability for local PERS and Police and Firemen’s Retirement
System (“PFRS”) is 77.5 percent and $11.6 billion.

The funded status and funding progress of the retirement systems is based on actuarial valuations which mvolve estimates of
the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject
to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of
future events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and arc based on the benefits provided under the terms of the
retirement systems in effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the
employer and members at that point in time. The projection of benefits for financing reporting purposes does not explicitly
incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and
members in the future.
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D. Employee Retirement Systems and Pension Plans (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation, the projected unit eredit was used as the actuarial cost method, and the five vear
average of market value was used as the asset valuation method for the retirement systems. The actuarial assumptions
included (a) a revised investment rate of return for all retirement systerns from 8.25 percent to 7.95 percent and (b) revised
projected salary increases of 4.52 percent for the PERS and 3.90 percent for TPAF.

Employer and Employee Pension Contributions

The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and contributions are required by active members and
participating employers. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation with
the amount of contributions by the State of New Jersey contingent upon the Annual Appropriations Act. As defined, the
retirement systems require employee contributions based on 6.5% for PERS, 6.5% for TPAF and 5.50% for DCRP of the
employee’s annual compensation.

Annual Pension Costs (APC)

Per the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27 for the year ended June 30, 2013 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan
with special funding situations, the annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a
cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit pension plan, the annual pension cost equals contributions made. TPAF
employer contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system on behalf of the Board. PERS
employer contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in accordance with Chapter 114, P.L. 1997, In
the DCRP, which is a defined contribution plan, member contributions are matched by a 3% employer contribution.

During the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 the Board was required to contribute for PERS and DCRP and the
State of New Jersey was required to contribute for TPAF for normal cost pension and accrued liability contributions
(including non-contributory group life insurance (NCGI)) the following amounts:

Fiscal
Year Ended On-behalf
June 30 PERS TPAF DCRP
2013 $ 119,825 $ 275,776 $ 3,137
2012 118,955 145,410 2,289
2011 122,431 13,365 1,138

The State contributed $275,776 and $145,410 during 2012/2013 and 2011/2012, respectively for normal cost pension,
accrued lability and the NCGI premium. For fiscal year 2010/2011, the State did not contribute to the TPAF for normal cost
and accrued liability; however, the State contributed $13,365 for the NCGI premium only.

Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the Board $329,814 during the year ended
June 30, 2013 for the employer’s- share of social security contributions for TPAF members as calculated on their base
salaries. This amount, along with the on-behalf TPAF pension contribution, has been included in the district-wide financial
statements and the fund financial statements as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB No. 24.
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E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the post-retirement health benefit program plans for school districts. The
Plans are cost sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans,

As a result of implementing Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for
Post-employment Benefit Plans Other than Pension Plans (OPEB), effective for Fiscal Year 2007, the State Health Benefits
Program (SHBP), and the Prescription Drug Program (PDP), and Post-Retirement Medical (PRM) of the PERS and TPAF
are combined and reported as Pension and Other employee Benefit Trust Funds in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). Specifically, SHBP-State, PDP-State, and the PRM of the PERS are combined and reported as a
Health Benefits Program Fund — State classified as a single employer plan. The SHBP-Local, PDP-Local, and the PRM of
the TPAF are combined and reported as Health Benefits Program Fund —Local Government classified as a cost-sharing
multiple-employer plan in the State’s CAFR. The post-retirement benefit programs had a total of 566 state and local
participating employers and contributing entities for Fiscal Year 2012,

The State of New Jersey sponsors and administers the following health benefit programs covering certain state and local
government employees, including those Board employees and retirees eligible for coverage.

Health Benefits Program Fund (HBPF) ~ Local Education (including Prescription Drug Program Fund) — The State of
New Jersey provides free coverage to members of the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund who retire from a board of
education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement. Under the provisions of P.L. 1992, ¢.126,
the State also provides free coverage to members of the Public Employees’ Retirement System and Alternate Benefits
Program who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years of service or on a disability retirement if the
mernber’s employer does not provide this coverage. Certain local participating employers also provide post-retirement
medical coverage to their employees. Retirees who are not eligible for employer paid health coverage at retirement can
continue in the program if their employer participates in this program or if they are participating in the health benefits plan of
their former employer and are enrolled in Medicare parts A and B by paying the cost of the insurance for themselves and
their covered dependents. Also, education employees are eligible for the PDP coverage after 60 days of employment.

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issues publicly available financial
reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information of the above Fund. The financial
reports may be accessed via the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, website
at www state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the health benefit programs are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Employer
contributions are recognized when payable to the health benefit programs. Benefits or refunds are recognized when due and
payable in accordance with the terms of the health benefit programs.

Significant Legislation

P.L. 2011, ¢.78, effective October 2011, sets new employee contribution requirements towards the cost of employer-
provided health benefit coverage. Employees are required to contribute a certain percentage of the cost of coverage. The
rate of contribution is determined based on the employee’s annual salary and the selected level of coverage. The increased
employee contributions will be phased in over a 4-year period for those employed prior to this new legislation’s effective
date with a minimum contribution required to be at least 1.5% of salary.
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION {Continued)

E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits (Continued)

Investment Valuation

Investments are reported at fair value. Investments that do not have an established market are reported at estimated fair
values.

Funded Status and Funding Progress

As of July [, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the State had a $48.9 billion unfunded actuarial accrued liability
for other post-employment benefits (OPEB) which is made up to $18.0 billion for state active and retired members and $30.9
billion for education employees and retirees that become the obligation of the State of New Jersey upon retirement.

The funded status and funding progress of the OPEB is based on actuarial valuations which involve estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. These amounts are subject to continual
revision as actua! results are compared {o past expectations and new estimates are made about the probability of future
events.

Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and are based on the benefits provided under the terms of the OPEB in
effect at the time of each valuation and also consider the pattern of the sharing of costs between the employer and members
at the point in time. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate the potential
effects of legal contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and members in the
future.

Actunarial Methods and Assumptions

In the July 1, 2011, actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit was used as the actuarial cost method. The actuarial
assumptions included an assumed investment rate of return of 4.50 percent.

Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions

P.L. 1987, c. 384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS), respectively to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those State employees and education
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. As of June 30, 2012,
there were 97,661, retirees receiving post-retirement medical benefits and the State contributed $958.9 million on their
behalf. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by the State and in accordance with P.L. 1994, ¢.62,
Funding of post-retirement medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal
Year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992, ¢.126, which provides free health benefits to members of

PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education with 25 years of service. The State paid
$146.6 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 16,618 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2012.
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NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)
E. Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions (Continued)
Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions (Continued)

The State sets the contribution rate based on a pay as you go basis and not on the annual required contribution of the
employers (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities {or funding excess) of the plan over a period not to exceed thirty years. The State’s
contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for TPAF retirees’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School
District for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $311,834, $292,315 and $283,869, respectively, which
equaled the required contributions for each year. The State’s contributions to the State Health Benefits Program Fund for
PERS retirces’ post-retirement benefits on behalf of the School District was not determined or made available by the State of
New Jersey.
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EXHIBIT C-1
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Original Final Final Budget
Budget  Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual
REVENUES
Local Sources
Property Tax Levy : $ 9,093,292 $ 9093292 § 9,093,292
Other Tuition (Preschool) 30,000 30,000 48375 § 18,375
Interest 3,377 3,377
Interest on Capital Reserve Funds 150 150 14 (136)
Miscellaneous 5,000 - 3,000 19,810 14,810
Total Local Sources 9,128,442 - 9,128,442 9,164,868 36,426
State Sources
Transportation Aid 7,965 7,965 7,965
Security Aid 17,757 17,757 17,757
Categorical Special Education Aid 214,304 214,304 214,304
Extraordinary Aid 08,722 98,722
On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions-Normal Costs :
& Accrued Liability(Non-Budget) 261,992 261,992
On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions-NCGE
(Non-Budget) 13,784 13,784
On-behalf TPAF Pension Systemn Contributions-Post
Retirement Medical Contributions (Non-Budget) 311,834 311,834
Reimbursed TPAT Social Security Payments
~ (Non-Budget) - - - 329,814 329,814
Total State Sources 240,026 - 240,026 1,256,172 1,016,146
Total Revenues 9,368,468 - 9,368,468 10,421,040 1,052,572
EXPENDITURES
Instruction - Regular Programs
Salaries of Teachers
Preschool 24945 § 55521 80,466 80,466
Kindergarten 266,515 985 267,500 267,495 3
Grades 1-5 1,490,367 31,527 1,521,894 1,516,851 5,043
Crades 6-8 971,623 (4,988} 966,635 965,691 944
Regular Program - Home Instruction :
Salaries of Teachers 10,000 3,500 13,500 10,365 3,135
Other Salaries for Instruction . 20,600 (20,000)
Regular Programs - Undistributed Instruction
QOther Salaries for Instruction 363,236 13,467 376,703 376,439 264
Health Benefits 1,071,334 9,775 1,081,109 1,070,930 10,179
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 43,800 - 43,800 43,000 800
Purchased Technical Services - 1,600 1,000 375 625
Other Purchased Services 24,000 - 24,000 14,790 9,210
General Supplies 118,693 39,229 157,922 138,964 18,958
Textbooks 65,000 (3,413) 61,587 50,834 10,753
Total Regular Programs 4,469,513 126,603 4,596,116 4,536,200 59,914
Continued
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EXHIBIT C-1

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Variance
Original Final Final Budget
Budget  Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Special Education
Learning and/or Language Disabilities
Salaries of Teachers b 59,450 - $ 56450 § 58450 3§ 1,000
Total Learning and/or Language Disabilities 59,450 - 59,450 58,450 1,000
Muttipie Disabilities .
Salaries of Teachers 186,008 § 5,400 191,408 191,408
Other Salaries for Instruction 20,457 881 21,338 20,458 880
Total Multiple Disabilities 206,465 6,281 212,746 211,866 830
Resource Roomy/ Resource Center
Salaries of Teachers 140,048 12,242 152,290 152,290 -
Total Resource Room 140,048 12,242 152,290 152,290 -
Autism
Salaries of Teachers 80,160 80,160 80,160
Other Salaries for nstruction 24,163 955 25,118 25,116 2
Total Autism 104,323 955 103,278 105,276 2
Total Special Education 510,286 19,478 - 529764 527,882 1,882
Basic Skills/Remedial
- Salaries of Teachers 120,934 {27,325) 93,609 93,608 1
Total Basic Skills/Remedial ' 120,934 (27,325 93,609 93,608 1
Bilingual Education
Salaries of Teachers 50,016 (1,468) 48,548 48,548 -
Total Bilingual Education 50,016 {1,468) 48,548 48,548 - -
Continued
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EXHIBIT C-1
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

Variance
Original - Final Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued}
School Sponsored Co/Extra Curricular Activities
Salarjes $ 13000 % 3,741 § 16741 5§ 16,741
Supplies and Materials 8,000 (328) 7,672 5,733 § 1,939
Total School Sponsored Co/Extra Curricular Activities 21,000 3,413 24,413 22,474 1,939
Total Instruction 5,171,749 120,701 5,292,450 5,228,712 63,738
Undistributed Expenditures
Instruction
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State-Special 298,433 (136,312) 162,121 139,182 22,939
Tuition to CSST & Regional Day Schools 118,300 55,040 173,340 154,800 18,540
Taition to Priv. Sch. For the Disabled W/I State 162,091 5,000 167,091 161,047 6,044
Total Undistributed Expenditures -
Instruction 578,824 (76,272) 502,552 455,029 47,523
Attendance and Social Work Services
Salaries 32,861 (2,534 30,327 30,238 8%
Total Attendance and Social Work Services 32,861 {2,534 30,327 30,238 89
Health Services
Salaries 86,498 4,712 91,210 91,201 9
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 4,500 4,500 4,000 500
Supplies and Materials 2,000 - 2,000 1,632 368
Total Health Services 92,998 4,712 97,710 96,833 877
Speech, OT, PT & Related Services
Salaries 63,461 3,571 67,032 65,247 1,785
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 155,000 98,356 253,336 206,297 47,059
Suppiies and Materials 250 85 335 264 71
Total Speech, OT, PT & Related Services 218,711 102,012 320,723 271,808 48,915
Other Support Serv, Students- Extra Serv.
Other Objects 5,000 {5,000} - - -
Total Other Support Serv. Students- Extra Serv. 5,000 {(5,000) - - -
Continued
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Final . Final Budget
Budget  Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual
EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)
Guidance
Salaries of Other Professional Staft b 54046 3% 3,275 57321 § 57317 § 4
Supplies and Materials 2,000 649 2,649 2,493 156
Total Guidance 56,046 3,924 59,970 59,810 160
Child Study Teams
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 284,417 (501) 283,916 283,912 4
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 15,000 765 15,765 9,853 5,912
Other Purchased Services 581 381 434 147
Supplies and Materials 3,000 3,000 1,261 1,739
Other Objects 5,000 (761) 4,239 2,271 1,968
Total Child Study Teams 307,417 84 307,501 297,731 9,770
Improvement of [nstructional Services
Purchased Professional-Educational Services . 55,000 (8,000) 47,000 43,083 3,917
Total Improvement of Instructional Services 55,000 (8,000) 47,000 43,083 3,917
Educational Media Services/School Library
Salaries 120,389 2,435 122,824 122,823 1
Supplies and Materials 10,000 (375) 9,625 9.376 249
Totzl Educational Media Serv./School Library 130,389 2,060 132,449 132,199 250
Instructional Staff Training Services
Other Purch. Professional and Technical Services 1,500 1,500 630 870
Other Purchased Services 3,500 - 3,500 - 3,500
Total Instructional Staff Training Services 5,000 - 5,000 630 4,370
Support Services General Administration
Salaries 233,545 233,545 233,545
Health Benefits 40,000 40,000 40,000
Legal Services 15,000 15,393 30,393 12,634 17,759
Audit Fees 22,000 320 22,320 22,320 -
Architectural/Engineering Services ‘ 9,253 9,253 7,774 1,479
Other Purchased Professional Services 14,000 (6,320) 7,680 5,195 2,485
Purchased Technical Services 4,500 413 4,913 2,413 2,500
Communications/Telephone 36,000 {5,986} 30,014 24,843 5,171
BOE Other Purchased Setvices 4,500 (500} 4,000 1,192 2,808
Misc Purchased Services 3,000 1,000 4,000 4,000
General Supplies 9,000 9,000 7,615 1,385
Miscellaneous Expenditures 3,000 3,000 250 2,750
BOE Membership Dues and Fees 9,000 (500) 8,500 7,974 526
Total Support Services General Administration 393,545 13,073 406,618 365,755 40,863
Continued
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EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued}
Support Services School Administration
Salaries of Principal/Asst. Principals
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants
Health Benefits .
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Other Purchased Services

Supplies and Materials
Other Objects

Total Support Services School Administration.

Central Services

Salaries
Health Benefits
Misceilanecus Purchased Services

Suppiies and Materials
Miscellaneous Expenditires

Total Central Services

Admin. Info. Technology

Salaries
Purchased Professional Services

Purchased Technical Services
Health Benefits

Total Admin, Info. Technology

Required Maintenance for School Facilities
Cleaning, Repair and Maint. Serv,
General Supplies

Total Required Maintenance for School Fac,

Custodial Services
Salaries
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides
Health Benefits
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Cleaning, Repair and Maint, Serv,
Other Purchased Property Services
Insurance
Miscellaneous Purchased Services
General Supplies
Energy (Electricity)
Energy (Natural Gas)
Other Objects

Total Custodial Services

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Final Final Budget
Budget  Adjustments  Budget Actual To Actual
$ 114444 3 10,200 § 124644 § 124,644
92,317 (92,3173
85,905 85,905 83,743 % 2,162
45,000 45,000 45,000
10,000 230 10,230 10,230
1,000 1,000 825 175
7,000 4,902 11,902 7.173 4,729
7,000 (4.875) 2,125 2,125 -
276,761 4,045 280,806 273,740 7,066
176,388 (24,612} 151,776 151,776
37,500 37,500 37,500
1,200 1,200 647 553
5,000 5,000 2,845 2,155
3,000 {£,200) 3,300 1,215 2,585
223,888 (24,612) 199,276 193,983 5,293
95,131 95,131 95,i31
28,400 28,400 28,400
15,000 (2,657 12,343 7,957 4,386
27,463 - 27,463 27,463 -
165,994 (2,657 163,337 158 951 4,386
35,000 10,896 45,896 45,859 37
20,000 113 20,113 14,766 5,347
55,000 11,009 66,009 60,625 5,384
294,967 (4,926 290,041 290,040 1
70,000 (31,272) 38,728 11,772 26,936
46,794 ) 46,794 46,794 :
17,000 5,021 22,021 22,021
15,000 19,729 34,729 24,363 10,366
60,000 (1,537) 58,463 54,061 4,402
92,000 (8,300% 83,700 83,667 33
20,000 (5,016) 14,984 13,944 1,040
20,600 (1,924) 18,076 18,076
280,000 (11,306) 268,694 220,630 48,064
80,000 (36,400) 43,600 27,581 16,019
4,000 - 4,000 3,270 730
999,761 (75,931) 923,830 816,219 107,611
Continued
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
GENERAL FUND

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXPENDITURES
CURRENT EXPENDITURES (Continued)
Undistributed Expenditures (Continued)

Security
Cleaning, Repair, and Maintenance Services

Total Security

Student Transportation Services
Salaries of Non-Instructional Aides

Salaries For Pupil Trans (Bet Home & Sch)-Sp Ed
Contract. Sves.(Spec Ed. Students)- Joint Agrmts

Total Student Transportation Services

Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits
Group Insurance
Socizal Security Contributions
Board Share Retirement - DCRFP
Other Retirement Contributions-PERS
Unemployment Compensation
Workmen's Compensation

Tuition Reimbursement
Cther Employee Benefits

Total Unallocated Benefits - Employee Benefits

On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions- Normal
Costs & Accrued Liability (Non-Budget)

On-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions-NCGI
Cost {Non-Budgef)

Ou-behalf TPAF Pension System Contributions-Post
Retirement Medical Contributions (Non-Budget)

Reimbursed TPAT Social Security Payments
(Non-Budget)

Total Undistributed Expenditures
Totat Expenditures - Current Expenditures
CAPITAL OUTLAY
Interest Deposit to Capital Reserve
Equipment
Undistributed Expenditures-Instruction
Undistributed Expenditures-Required Maint. For School Facilities

Total Equipment

Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services
Other Objects- Debt Service Assessment

Total Facilities Acquisition and Construction Services

Total Capital Qutlay

EXHIBIT C-1

Variance
Original Final Final Budget
Budget  Adjustments Budget Actual To Actuai
- b 16833 § 163833 3 6278 § 10,555
- 16,833 16,833 6,278 10,555
$ 22249 (22,249)
21,458 21,458 21,458
180,000 (53,602) 126,398 100,560 25,838
202,249 . (54,393) 147,856 122,018 25,838
9,000 (2,699) 6,301 4,594 1,707
130,000 (16,175} 119,825 101,225 18,600
4,000 4,000 3,137 863
124,973 124,973 124,973
20,000 20,000 19,555 445
75,000 (24,945) 50,055 50,055
15,000 3,600 18,600 13,487 5,113
141,000 {138,840) 2,160 2,160 -
396,000 (44,086) 345,914 319,186 26,728
261,992 (261,992)
13,784 (13,784)
311,834 (311,834)
- - - 329,814 (329,814)
4,183,444 {135,733) 4,053,711 4,621,540 (567,829)
9,361,193 (15,032) 9,346,161 9,850,252 (304,091
150 - 150 - 150
24,636 24,636 24,636
- 45232 45,232 37,544 7,688
- 69,868 69,868 62,180 7,688
36,191 - 36,191 36,191 -
36,191 - 36,191 36,191 -
36,341 69,868 106,209 98,371 7,838
Continued
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GENERAL FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Varianee
Original Final Final Budget
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual To Actual
TRANSFER OF FUNDS TO CHARTER SCHOOL 33049 § 38274 §3 71323 § 71323 -
Fotal Expenditures 9,430,583 93,110 9,523,693 10,019946 3 (496,253)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
QOver/(Under) Expenditures (62,115 (93,110) {155,225) 401,094 556,319
Other Financing Sources
QOperating Transfers In - - - 93 93
Total Other Financing Sources - - - 93 93
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over/(Under)
Expenditures and Other Financing Sources (62,115) (93,110) (155,225) 401,187 556,412
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 718,070 - 718,070 718,070 -
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 655955 § (93,110) $ 562,845 § 1119257 § 556,412

Recapitufation of Fund Balance

Restricted Fund Balance
Reserved Excess Surplus - Designated for Subsequent Year's Expeaditures $ 70,724
Reserved Excess Surplus 205,408
Capital Reserve 12,135
Maintenance Reserve 405,000
Assigned Fund Balance
Year-End Encumbrances ‘ 77,268
Unassigned Fund Balance 348,722
Reconcitiation to Governmental Funds Statements (GAAP): 1,119,257
Less: 2012/2013 Extraordinary Aid not Recognized in 8 GAAP Basis § (98,722)
2012/2013 State Aid Payments not Recognized in a GAAP Basis {7,627)
(106,349)

Fund Balance Per Governmental Funds {GAAP) $ 1,012,908

_ EXHIBIT C-1

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
|
I
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REVENUES
Intergovernmentai
Federal
Local Sources

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Instruction
Salaries of Teachers
Tuition
Purchased Professional-Educational Services
Other Purchased Services

General Supplies
Other Objects

Total Instruction

Support Services
Purchased Professional-Educational Services

Other Purchased Services
Personal Services-Employee Benefits

General Supplies
Other Objects
Total Support Services

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revemies
Over/(Under) Expenditures

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year

Fund Balances, End of Year

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET (NON-GAAP) AND ACTUAL

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

EXHIBIT C-2

Original Final Variance
Budget Adjustments Budget Actual Final to Actual
$ 197,324 § 43,694 % 241,018 234,794 (6,224
- 13,360 13,630 4,703 {8,927
197,324 57,054 254,648 239,497 (15,15
42,000 2,380 44 380 44,380
120,000 24,293 144,293 144,293
3,200 3,200 3,200
866 866 458 408
12,769 17,040 29,809 17,586 12,223
- 1,100 1,100 - 1,100
174,769 48,879 223,648 2(}9,9'17 13,731
14,155 2,219 16,374 16,374
2,600 2,600 2,600
8,400 1,315 9,715 9,713
1,849 1,849 891 958
- 462 462 - 462
22,555 8,445 31,000 29,580 1,420
197,324 57,324 254,648 239,497 15,151
b - $ - 3 - - -
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EXHIBIT C-3
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during the year. For
governmental funds there are no substantial differences hetween the budgetary basis of accounting and accounting principles
generalty accepted in the United States of America, with the exception of the legally mandated revenue recognition of certain
state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration of the governmental fund
types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.

The accounting records of the Special Revenue Fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. The grant
accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognizes encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. Sufficient supplemental records
are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis financial reports.

The following presents a reconciliation of the General and Special Revenue Funds from the budgetary basis of accounting
as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund and Special Revenue Fund to the GAAP basis of
accounting as presented in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Governmental Funds.

Special
General Revenue
Fund Fund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue”

from the budgetary comparison schedule (C-1) § 10,421,040 (C2) § 239,497
Difference - Budget to GAAP:

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that

encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related

revenue is recognized.

Encumbrances, June 30, 2013 37
State Aid payments recognized for GAAP purposes, not recognized
for Budgetary statements {2011/2012 State Aid and Extraordinary Aid) 73,318
State Aid payment recognized for Budgetary purposes, not recognized
for GAAP statements (2012/2013 State Aid and Extracrdinary Aid) {106,349) -

Total revenues as reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds. $ 10,388,009 $ 239,460

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows” from the
budgetary comparison schedule (C-1) § 10,019946 (C-2) $ 239,497

Ditferences - Budget to GAAP
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the vear the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.

Encumbrances, June 30, 2013 - (37

Total expenditures as reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 10,019,946 3 239,460
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SCHOOIL. LEVEL SCHEDULES
(General Fund)

NOT APPLICABLE
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EXHIBIT E-2

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL PROGRAM AID EXPENDITURES
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOT APPLICABLE
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PROJECT EXPENDITURES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Issue/Project Title

Construction of New Pre-Kindergarten to 8th Grade School

Expenditures to Date

EXHIBIT F-1

Unexpended
Balance,

Appropriation Prior Years Current Year  June 30, 2013
$ 28,629,810 $§ 28,566,821 § 54,641 3§ 8,348
Project Balance 5 8,348
Debt Authorized But Not Issued (181)
Fund Balance - GAAP Basis $ 8,167
Recapitulation of Fund Balance
Restricted for Capital Projects:
Year End Encumbrances $ 8,167
Total Fund Balance - Restricted
for Capital Projects 8 8,167
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EXHIBIT F-2

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND :
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Interest Earnings 3 93

Total Revenues ‘ 93

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Purchased Professional and Technical Services 54,641
Transfer to General Fund 93
Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses 54,734
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (54,641)
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 62,808
Fund Balance - End of Year b 8,167
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

EXHIBIT F-2A

SCHEDULE OF PROJECT REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, PROJECT BALANCE AND PROJECT STATUS -

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Revenues and Other Financing Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant

Bond Proceeds and Transfers
Interest Earnings

Total Revenues

Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Purchased Professional and Technical Services
Land and Improvements
Construction Services
Equipment
Supplies
Furniture
Fees and Permits
Other Objects

Transfer to Debt Service Fund
Transfer to General Fund

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) or Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Additional Project Information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Additional Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage [ncrease Over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage Completion

Original Target Completion Date

Revised Target Completion Date

Revised
Authorized
Prior Pericds Current Year Totals Cost

$ 4,182,629 4,182,629 $§ 4,182,629
24,447,000 24,447,000 24,447,181

1,081,266 § 93 1,081,359 -
29,710,895 93 29,710,988 28,629,810
3,703,085 54,641 3,757,726 3,766,074
400,000 400,000 400,000
23,183,209 23,183,209 23,183,209
275,347 275,347 275,347
405 405 405
370,157 370,157 370,157
118,363 118,363 118,363
516,255 516,253 516,255

111,339 111,339

969,927 93 970,620 -
29,648,087 54,734 29,702,821 28,629,810

$ 62,808 § (54,641) § 8167 § -

0740-N01-04-00GY

5/3/2004
3/9/2004
24,447,181
24,447,000
28,629,810

28,629,810
0%
100%

9/2006
6/2011
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
ENTERPRISE FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-4

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-5

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-6
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ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

NET POSITION

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
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EXHIBIT G-4

Shared Service
Agreement-
Network
Technology

Support

$ 13,895

13,895

13,895

$ 13,895




EXHIBIT G-5

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICFE FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Shared Service
Agreements-
Network
Technology

_ Support__

Net Position , Beginning of Year $ 13,895

Net Position, End of Year 3 13,895
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EXHIBIT G-6

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2013

Shared Service

Agreements-
Network
Technology
Support
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year $ 13,895
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3 13,895
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by
Operating Activities
Operating Income $ -
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ -
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ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Due to Other Fund
Accounts Payable

Due to Student Groups

Total Liabilities

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2013
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EXHIBIT H-1

Student Total

Activity Payroll Apency Funds
56,958 387 57,345
56,958 387 57,345
387 387
9,327 9,327
47,631 - 47,631
56,958 387 57,345




EXHIBIT H-2

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

THIS STATEMENT IS NOT APPLICABLE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ARE PRESENTED ON EXHIBIT B-4

EXHIBIT H-3
STUDENT ACTIVITY AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Balance, Balance,
July 1, 2012 Receipts Disbursements June 30, 2013
ELEMENTARYMIDDLE SCHOOL

Carlstadt School Fund $ 39,110 § 88,049 % 70,201 8 56,958

Total $ 39,110 § 88,049 § 70,201 § 56,958
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EXHIBIT H-4
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
PAYROLIL AGENCY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2013

Balance, Balance,
July 1, June 30,
2012 Additions Deletions 2013
ASSETS
Cash $ 137 $ 6,121,483 § 6,121,233 § 387
Total Assets $ 137 § 6,121,483 § 6,121,233 § 387
LIABILITIES ‘
Payroll Deductions and Withholdings $ 2,731,049 $ 2,731,049
Accroed Salaries and Wages - 3,390,184 3,390,184
Due to Other Funds 3 137 250 - 5 387
Total Liabilitics 3 137 $ 6,121,483 § 6,121,233 % 387
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STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the Carlstadt's Board of Education's comprehensive annual financial report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the government's

overall financial health,

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the government's financial performance and well-being have changed
over time.

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the govern-
ment's most significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the afforda-
bility of the government's current levels of outstanding debt and the
government's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the government's finan-
cial activities take place.

Operating Information

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader
understand how the information in the government's financial report

relates to the services the government provides and the activities it performs.

!

Exhibits

J-1toJ-5

J-6 to J-9

J-10to J-13

J-14 and J-15

J-16 to J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.




£80'835°9 ¥90°8909 § POI91LS § 899ESTS  § 8556075 TS6 165§ 058969 3 1SL'98L'L LELTLTL LLLTSS T $
LZ0L9% GPTIIE s {£Loect) (ost8L) [THEN 81L'SES £0LT9E {£0L7v67) 100119
gLy B66THT BE6TL Tzlel 72891 zi9l 16995 153991 To5 I LEEEl
[ R T LIBELSS § RIETOES § SLUPYES SRF LTS 050°0L¥s 8 [pHeees 3§ 161°LZTL LEFTSE'L StF'8L6 £
L9010 B66°LE]  $ €SLEll § 16336 B ££8.26 20E°t6 £ 08L'E8 3 9E9'L LEO'T 08 §
STE09 <198 01288 [69°SE 0ETH1 w0re 165 9£9° LEQL [ 3
fxaa:l €381 § £v5Ls 8 £0T'E9 % £09°3L 90T°s8 g £81°08 $
SEEI8FD 990°0E6S § 1I+0095 3 YLLFSIC § sTL9Ll’s FPoE0ss § 0L0ES6S  § SII'ssL' 0OLTLT'T L6TTSE $
7057901 TEISZT RELLYE [CETH] {089°76) 8L97T01 120 1907198 (AT 1257019
T8Iy 266°TYT 26671 £ | 72591 zZI9l 16995 1597991 96711 [E£°€T
128°959°S re619t's § SLOBPES § SL6°00£°C 3 £38°T61'S PPEFSE'S  § 8ETH0E'S  § 1614721 LiF'TSE' SHPRT6 3
€16T Z10Z 1102 oLozZ 600T 300T L00T 007 C00T Y00T

I-f LI9IHX3

"OE sung papuE TR K [05Ld

(Beunnocop fo s150g (poon)
{panpueun}
SYUVIA TYISLL NAL, 18V'L

*LNENOJNO0D A NOIEISOd LN
NOILYOOdE 40 I vOd LAVLSTHY)

WORISGJ N WLISIT [€101,
paISLESaIU[)
o3OSy
s1essy [etider) uf JusunsaAt] JaN
SpLm-1LISI]

uolisod 1N seaney ad{[-sseumisng jeloL
peioszsaupy
pataLsey
sjassy Ende)) ur uawisaau] 19N
SAUANSY adAl-ssomsng

UOHISO BN STIIAIOY [BIUSWLIIAOL) [BIO],
pajoizsanuy)
panusay
syessy ender) Ul JUOUNSIAUS 1N
SSIANIY [BIUSLITLIAAOE)

76



Ll

(196°89<01) (ziv'sez'o) §  (905°1366) (azit36's) & (9goiool) (9s6TiL’s)  § (003368 %) {Z88 16 8} [ (P 18189
(0iF 1€) [Ecard 9E891 68L'sl [ETER (30187 VR (eeret} [ (S¥T o)
(1¥9'9£2°01) (se9'01€'01) §  (TrE's66's) (316'z000) §  (S19°kL0°01) (grgvor'sy  §  (r18'E9%%) (5bLcLE°8) (821°29£°L) (676'102'0)
9FR'EZB'L 98¢ P09l & AT9 611 8L9°E04'1 g 088 £C°1 SELOTLT § L16'635°S CECLIT] $60'1£0'1 LLE6I0T
ELCLIE 1£9°L0¢ 791 ¢iT 1Lr' 197 6ZL 8P 160°8¢EL 153301 BEl 6] [ ES6 21
- - - - - - 066 +3
FEYSTL £20°001 851'6L z80'pL 699'L§ 1L0°%F LOG'ST [srat 9LF'L L8E'9
6L0°Z0T Trs'LoT 3 +95'c61 68£'L81 3§ 090'161 9ELET $ SH0's 9T6L 9ULE'L 99¢'9
L7505 1 569’9521 8 BSPERO | LOTThE'L H 15830 1 355 L3P [ §SOI85°S o0 8rl | £rOCS0’| PIbO50 1
K - - - - - T - - T160Z
368°L5H'( 5CT ST 164'L56 909'98¢' SLE'3ET'T 8€6'18€1 THES LT $60°8¥1°1 £69'650°1 L1§°6£0°1
SLE"RY 00Y'6¢ $ £99'901 109°5§ $ 9.8ty 000'3a1 $
LO6 1601 36968 11 3 FIANTT 0806911 § 16820911 169650 11 3 11£930°01 F11'655'6 978 8bt'S [
£66 BYE FOT LA 9EE'88L 789557 1,£'052 S06°9PT GELTF 1425¢ SO0'LE 861'67
T66'37C YOy §3L 975 85L Z99°S¥T trefose £05°9FT GEL ¥ 33 SO0 1E 361'67
YIETrL L1 FETLOG ! 098 ¢k 11 STISFPLL GLELSE LT 9ELTHL L] TLS FPO0! (8525 6 1Z8'L1b'8 £5E 3081
705568 FEYES Vel LS6 $ii'sds SLE110 L 101 BEL 9507 Tee 6501 LEC9LT
FSOS6E ZLI'60k SLE'YSY 9TLLSY $E9'EHT PLSPER ELEG1E 860°70¢ THS'8IT 6TE631
$T9STL [L¢'18l 0ST'H61 08L'661 £96°661 161°€5 OFIT 9z8'81 161941 68L'S0T
okt 666 28570881 £8£'976°1 [6£'905"( £96°F55 T L8L'109't 6607048 8[Z'718 £52'508 LTOPSL
£L0°BEY 318334 601'50F 0L8°ISE BE6'09€ LE5'908 008°6¥E 6£9'167 fretzo LITZEY
BY6'5TE [og'1z¢ LOS'LTE 9FLTFE 0L YE 85L'E6E IHTH6T pOT'GLE 6Z£'28¢ FEESEY
9p6'TL0'1 FS1'6i6 £88° 1907 A3 21 865°€6L LE0'TT8 QTE0EL 65£'000°t 6£5°608 186°98L
000°0F
L16'9¢ £85°51 +80"5T TBLIT 0TE'ET T £18'61 [ihaayerd 31LIT 290°ET
80575 SETTIE LLETLL 99V EET GLEOER LIT'6ST 08L'TLE L08'2LT 6¥H'S8T 098°9LT
CIL'LsTL 1567821 AN §eT'6ET 109t £8L'TTH'] 896'¢8T'1 85E°E00°L LEF6OL'T THEL68
280°8HE"S LIy'Lsl's % YRLOPEY 66V 1T6'Y $ vLOOLEY (T88PLY $ LBLPES'Y TIS'TOEF G8F068'E 96E°LISE
£107 THT 1102 0I0T 6007 2607 LUGT 9002 S00C ¥00z
g [ AT Jes X [@asid

- LISINXY

(Bununoosp fo sisoq (oniaon)
(panpoeu(y)

SHYAA TVISLI NIL ISV
NGILISOd 13N NI SEDNVHD
NOILYDNOY 40 AIV0L LAVLSTIVD

stsXg 13N SPIANTIISI oL
sansyay sdip-ssansng
SIARIY RIUAUITHISA0D)
anuaAdgosusdy ) 1

SeNURAY WerSold ST B0
sanuaAYY Werol] SAWAUDY 9dA] ssoursng TE10L
SUOURYLIVC pue siuzigy Ride))
suonnqLENe) puE sivesr) Suyeredo)
FIAEG POC
sa01A08 1) SaRIRYD
souanay odif-ssausng

sonuznsy WRISOI] SHUALDY [RIUSLILIGACD) [BIO],
SUONINQIILE]) PUE SEID [ende)
suonnqLIue) pue sivelny Junerady)
S20LAIRE 10§ SaErey])

SIS Y [RILUAURLIAOL)

SINLIARY WIELBOR

sosuedyg J0MSK] (@O

esuadxy senuanay sdA]-ssaulsng ejo],
201AL2S POOLY

sanAnyy odi ] -ssowrsng

sasuadxy SIPNOY [EIUAUUIAOLY RICL
1qa(] w3 -Suoy uo 151U
"OJU] WBWPY/ A [ROUR]/SSUENY
uozepodsusl ], pdog
SOUBURIUTERY PUE Suogeid() WEld
UCHRLSRIUIDY [2RU0)
SAOTISE SARRISURIPY [00YI5
SROIAJAS PRIRIFY UoRoNOSY] 73 APy
18201A9 g Neddng
sweiSo1] F0Iag Anmumoy
SOUS[FY PUR SSUUDY PRIOSUOLS (00408
UOUINASU] IFICY
uoneanpy ready
ey
oINSy
SAMALDY [BILUUIIAOTY
sesuadxy



8L

510078 006 15E $ 965 Ty $ FE6 LY (pergss) 5 (ges’aly) 3 660°0TEF F10' 785 0¥0'08¢) §  155iTrs) 5
(6TTER SYTTL 65891 [CER (T3] 37501 PTce €65 153 [GI73]
69T 1SS $59°6ZE § LE9'SHr H £E1'28 g {8I6'98g) §  (gTesy) 3 SE'LET'Y Siv'ess (£65'03%) 5 (910°2€8) 3
080°88¢'01 TIEDP90L S Z00EREeL 8 £90°5500L & L98°L8Y6 H SOFETS B 5698148 968'SLEY 169'L66'9 5 JOF'58T'9 $
A 3] [¥4 Zl £91 9E98] 0EV'L1 ZELOI OLI'gl Say sl
ST8L 0£b'L] ZEL9L orrgl S6¥ 1
oLl 31 24 7l £91 1z
016°L8L°01L poL0kO01 6L6 EvY 01 1€0°€50°G1 004’1896 W LITE 69 1028 F5{6568 18571869 £16639E9
ovL’LLy)
(s11'31) {osy'L1} {gec'si) {o11°90) (g6b'c)
CI8'%e 100°¢€ $66°51 P86 66L'LT SE§'Ll £57'T FLET £20'E 298°01
FREE 066°€ 8LL'C 1991 Lb0'8 9TL'Pe TITHHE 0¥ LEL £5K8LT 196'¢
[{X.ca]
14 65T'C 8LL'T 20£°8L L81'Ls 182'59 9TE'59 €511
1299991 1280591 128'359'1 179'559°1 172°159°1 2685001 SE8°EES’T STT'0011
T6T'E60°6 /YOEE'8 § BL1'G9L' $ 975'03¢'8 $ SE8°LE6'L 3 EIR 2 g OST6FEL STT'ILOL 688'118'9 $ 650°612" $
€108 Z10% [ 4107 6007 00T LO0T S002 5007 FOOT

T LISIHXA

0§ Sun[ papug WA [BSH

Bununosoo fo siseq jenroo0)

(pasrpnenn)

SHVIA TYISIA NAL LSV
NOILLISOd LAN NI STONVHD
NOILVIGA 20 qdV04d LAVLETIVD

WUSIE [RIOF,
sanfatay adh] -ssaumisng
SAWANDY [RIUSIIISAOD)
woLso ] 1ap W aduey

Sprap-RaLsie] o]
safiAnoY adA] -ssemsng [EI0]
SIaySUeS],
SRS WRWRSIAUL
SIMARDY SUA] -ssauisng

SOOIATDY [EJUAITURACD) [RI0],
spassy felder) Jo usodsicg uo ssoy
sIejsunz],
SO SNOTUBIISTA
SBUTLITD JURISIAUL
stasse [endea jo msodstp vo sso]
SUECYNYLULOD PUB SIESd paLatmse )
FOUAIRE IGAP 1Y PIIAT] SIXET,
120 “sasodmd [eiouad 10§ paras) saxey Aradorg
ISSUIANTY [BIUSIEAACT
HOTIS0 ] FAN T SITUEY) SOYL() PUk SINUBAY (RIS



“paxmbal 10U st 6 "ON Jusw=ers wim Ldwos 01 sunowe soueeq pury sead Jourd Jo UCTBYISSEIY SPUTY [RIUSUIIaA0T
parodal s30Mmosar 33 30 2sn 2z vodn pasodwrn SIUENSUOD 2AISSQ0 0} PUNOG S IUSUNURA0T B oMM 03 Jua)xa 2y} uo Ajuew:d paseq Ayoreian] B 3sUdUi0D Jey) SUOTBOLISSE[D 20UBleq
PULY PAYSIQRISS WUAWR)S SIYL JuSedsusi 10U S0UReq pury SJUSUNLIZA0F € uo peoeld SKTERSU0D ot JO 1UALXD PUE 2ARIEU 21 9B O] SoU0Ferea 30ue[Rq Pury paugsp ATes|o

210w sopiaord Juawierels Ay -, suonrsgac] adAy pung Eusuniason) pue Surpoday ssuepyg puny, ‘p¢ ON WUINES SV PAruams[dun 101K o1l °f £ 07 BRA oSt ynam Fuiuurdag

(£20°6SH)  § URJ EIHSWLIRACD IO [TV {RI0L

rFO'6 $ $89°t9 619°PEL & 9£8°98¢ & 90ZLYL % ETE0E0TT  § LEFF0S'T  § LLEEES'S § LEE'6DSTEE §
Lt $ $89°€9 S19°%FE1 §
9EECLE 90LF19 £97°188 988°9LT'1 (vzL's18) Z8E°566 (0L COF 1}
00811 by 005°TS1 £ 090°6F1 3 LHSLTTY S 101°€59°6  § SLE'CISTIT § PRTROOL  §
S06°Z10°1  § ISLFFS T8C°Esk  § 0LF86  $ 0ZL°L6 £ 15515y § 629°170°1 § SPIvil  § T69°EL $ SHRLT 8
CLETHE 8ELIFT 000057
89T°LL ¥S0'1T S¥I'66
L9T'E69 8 096'FLE 9ETHOT %
£88°8L ¥RL°0% 8E6'¥11 61L7CET 96+ LIL 8E0°LE 150°L61
£65°61 $ 9££°91 3 £65°9¢C & ¢16's08 § Lv9'9se § $£9°9¢ 3 LOH 18 $
£107 T10T 110Z 0i0¢ 6007 8007 £00T 9002 $00T ¥007

€T LIFTHX3

“0E SuR[ PApUd Fa7, 608

(Bununoson jo s15pq jprdon pafipow)

SYVEA TVISII NLL 1SV

(papneun)

SANNE TVINTWNYIAOD - STONVIVH ANNA

NOIL¥I(IA 30 qavVOd LAYISTIVO

paudisset)
pausissy
ichiliisiiive]
poIaLusey
PaATasaIun)
panasey

SpUnJ JEIUSUIMLIIAOL} INICY 1Y

puny feIausn) [glo],

paudisseun
paudissy
PaRIRamIo)
paromsey
PAALISAIUN)
paAIasETy

PUT FRIIUID)

79



08

“aswagas Jqap pue £epno rendes ssa) samypuadxe [eict are seauipuadys endesucy

%19°L YBG L, %69'8 %19'8 %96'8 %676 %b 101 %L %000 %0070
SISE1E §  LEFOZI 289701 § (0£6'v9t) g {gzs'L19) § (periooT) §  (8sH'I90°9) ¢ (erosieTl) § 0 vigestze § (B1U1£6) &
- - - - 61679 (S31°8t) 0L PE (2EL01) 063 0L ¥ (c6t°61)

{73} (g61) (3.8} (t£9) [3xa] (Z97'¢8) (oLz°012} {66E7sTL) (L6tr9zT) {1L5¢1)
£6 861 9.8 £EY TEP'T LPL'SO 9r§'Z61 LOG'R0L £8E°01T 9L

6169 ET'TL

000 LIF T

CI5'E1E LEFOTT 889°C01 (0e6'495) (L¥b"789) (610°6+0°T) (o917911'9) (£6L°856°TT) (0LT129°1) (ez9'518)
899°086'1 1 TICOISII SE0'61E° 11 £85°908' 11 7160911 PoY P99 L] LSS'E68°07 LBLTBOET DI9FEL'6 7894578
0L 106 6ELTES 16L°196 765686 WosIol LYL'3E0'] 12Z°650°t [£aa I - -
FI8°L8L 0TLISL 859°07L LEG'689 L09°659 701869 000°58¢
LFESTL 0STIET £I1L'16T LLO'ELE TLO'L9T 980°6L¥°1 LY IS0l 0ET'8TLEL LELERYL LS8
20413 Loy 788'06¢ PLOCIY opE L6l SLL'BTE cL861E 860°T0T TFSRIT 6TE°681

To°sT1 12€°181 05Z'v61 08L°661 £96'661 161°€5T EHTIL 9¢8°081 101°9L1 68L°507
££9°T63 1TE°6L6 SPRTG R1L°0%6 6£9°666 188°2Lb0°1 19669 9TT 108 TTIT6L LLL'E6L
6PG 6TE 103°1Z¢ 617°9Z¢ TYEbYE TLT6EY 115°1Z¢ 97967 158°99¢ 680°LLS 1LE°0v0
ELO'REY SPI'EEr LEY' 56 [SE°L8E 111 §:133 8SLBIE 008°F9E £1F°00E 941°6£E 168°6tF
OPE°TLO PCI6LG TZE990°T 9TEGETT 8L4°008 L60'TZR 9IE'0EL 189°LL6 6F0'Y6L £8LTLL

000'0F
L16°9T £85°61 ¥80%T - 78L°9T £86°TT 9Z¥'8t £I8°SI oFs0Z 81L°TT 890°€T
605°T5T SETTIE LLVPTE 99" CET I6¥'6ip L11°68E 08L°TLE L0STLT ELGTRT 098°9LZ

TILLSTL [$6787°1 SHE1S0°1 CETHETE LyL'6SH'T £8L°TTF1 896'€8T7°1 60T°000°L 2PT601°F ££1°L68
93EVLE'S 080°080°¢ $EP'BLE Y LTOESE'Y 680'6FLF 080'91L't 085'905" PRUELTY SESGILE PITEISTE
€8 P6T Tl 6¥6 986 11 9zZL 1Y 11 LSO IYY LI CL9'9TE'01 SLP' 19701 L69LLLYY 06621701 FEEESO'R 650°THE L
LSLYET 787697 079°7LT $167°80€ SeZelL 0871LT 085 1L1 061°6L1 601°¢81 048°€81
[¥1°62T1 LO6'ES6 614599 008°6L0°F 815'8¢0°T 969°887°1 £99°9Lt°S 0LYFEO'E 9PLCEG STHETE
288°TL LIV'LL 056°¢S yes'sl 66L°LT $E5°LT $ETT 68€°C LET'T LT
¥8I'E 066°¢ 8ELC 1997 LFO'] GILPY TITHE a1 £CHRIT 196°¢
EL6'66L°01  § £0£7109°01 666 CTFRT §  LPIOE0Dl  $  SL0%6¥96 % 896°TS0%6  § 586’7888 § OPE'9LIS % 688189 §  6SO6ITD §

£10Z Z10Z 1102 014T 6007 7007 LO0T 9007 5007 $00T
‘0 dun[ PapUY TEd & jeIsi]
(Buijunosop fo sisoq [onioor paifipoul)
(paypnenn)) .
SYVIA TVISIA NAL ISVT

- LTHIHXA

SANNA TY.INTFANIIAQD ~ SHONVIVE ANOA NI SEONYHD
NOLLYONUE 20 MIvOd LAVISTIYD

samyipuadxs Endesucu
30 28eusorad ® s 201IAK05 1G0T

saowe|eg PN, w1 oFuee) 1PN

{ses(y) seomog Jurpteun] 1210 (210,
no muD.me.mh.H
uf SIgJsUeL],
sases [eiden
uIo0q WO SPa3d0LY
(sasn) 5901005 Supwewyf 9410

samyrpuadxy (zpun) 1oa0
SotuRAY JO (AOUBILS(T) 53K
m@m:..:ﬂ:ummunm ~.mu0.h
SOBIEYD 10110 PUE 152I01U]
[ediounig
30IAIDE 1997
Aepino ende)
TS, O] UMUPY/SIAS EIEI Y SOAS SSoUISnY
uoneprodsweay, rdng
2oURUSIRIN pUR sucieisd() JuBLy
$IOIAIIG DATTRIISTUIPY (0025
SATRNSTUTURY [EIIU00)
SITAIRE Pore[ey] ISU] 7§ JUSPS
sao1Atag poddng
SIIFOL] 90[A12G ANURUNIO,)
SOTRTYIY PUE SenATIoy parosuodg jo0upg
UCIOINSTE 19910}
UOTAMLSUT uOneInpy mmmuu&m
ugnonnsu] ey
itbalate ity |
samnpusdxyg

SHNUSATY [BIO],
SABWI0G (3P,
$32IN0G 281G
SROBIER([IISTN]
s3opureg 152000]
Angp xe] Auedord
FINUIAIY



9LE 1L
£61°8L
18°ss
800°91
63¢°9

L17'0¢
66L°1€
00L%T
wY'6

06¥°F1

el

ST LIGIHXA

SITF
100°cE
¥66°S1
6LT
19L°1

[49!

LIE

§ 9801 $

$65°¢1

R ERIT I

Rdid i

$ CLESF
00V°6¢
956°6¢
Tl £3CY¥1
3. A 01 $
¥0¢ 1§93
621 $ 8.8
£49°1 $
u—-@EE:om man._,m vﬂccm mwﬂuaomﬁ._n—:mmum uotnjing,
Jduelnsuy fspunjay
(psupneuy)
SYVAA NIL LSV'I

H3EA0S A9 HONTATH TVOOT HHHIO ANNA TVHINTD
NOILYD(dH 40 QIVOd LAVISTIVD

16£°¢
TOLE
7987
PTOl
879y
786°81
Pr80¢
9L£7T
618°L
879°¢

pauIEg
ysaaayug

£10T
(454
[10¢
o1ee
600C
800C
LO0T
900T
$00T
00T

pg qunygp

papuyg
JE3Z [BISI]

81



*€107 ek [EPUSZED AANSOLD UOTIENIBAR] € JUAMISPIR YER0I10H YT »

01§ red o sz ve] e
ol
o

101333[07) Xe] ediun)y] :aomog

£55°0 180°STESTOT 079°980°L00°C 9ZI'E8L'E 0040 00T 0047251 006'2E£8°T90°T 00T'9T8LLE 001°918°S1S 008°C0EpE {1
6911 615°L79°186°1 08L'9P0 126 SYH'EI8l SEEEET6I6 006'169°S 88¢°L98°88Y 0¥ IHZ091 LOG069°SYT OELTHT6L zi0Z
$EET TOETELRETT - DRE'CRLEES SPPEIR] SESTEGLER 006°169°¢ 888'607°88% 0T9'£08'sLT LODPEE T 0£6°791°81 1102
0601 656°L86°L69°C THI'OL0'986 L09°698'T CECOITESG 006°169°C 289°vLS 61 0I+'669°161 LOF'6L6°9FT osI'eoe’st . 010z
EBO'L 181°60£°665°T 0EL'SB8 Y95 S6L'8F6T SE6'9E6T96 006°169°S B31°0FET0E 016°8K8°T61 LOG'689°S¥T 0£6°991°L1 600T
P66'0 £66°650P9ET 871'699°048 101°180'T LT0°885°396 006'169°¢ 086'07¢°115 0T¥'F86°061 LDEGELTIT DEF165LL 200
£06°0 SPS9819ITT oY TOT'SLG £9L'¥8E'T LLYLIG'TLE 006'169°S 081'1£6'815 01¥°869°061 LOS LHOEFT 089°3FC ST L00T
£06°0 YZFITFSE8 T U I657ERS SLEPER'E LLELEO086 006'169°S 080°606'5S 01+ 199261 LOS'6LT6ET 08E°SST°LY 900
SLLO 89€°6L6'128°1 660°3E0°650°] TOTLILT L66'816°TS0° 006°'169'S 08F'E6E°5TS 0LO6LI'TOT LOTTIL'LEE OPETHE Y8 $00T
PE90 $ ERCPRIEOOT $  PSEOEI6KOT1T 5 LSO'EG8T S LEE'LETLVOTS 006'169°S $ 088'55L°6TS OLO'SES'IST $ LOTLESIET § ore619'e6 § ¥00T
. ey xey, IM[EA EIREECTA EETTITY anep Juatmredy feLnsnpup [BI2JuRI0)) [FHECTTS) “Jay wre g [enuapsay PUET] IURORA ‘pg sung
|octjog (pez1enby Anmo)} uegEnEA 19N aHqng passassy (B0, papng
1oan(g {enRy paremsy ELEPY
e}, oSty
(paupneuqy)
SYVIA NAL LSV

ALEAdO¥E ITIVXVL 40 ANTYA TVALDY ANV ANTVA QUSSASSY
NOILVINAA 40 JHV0d LEVISTIVD
9-r LIGIHX3



Calendar
Year

2004
2003
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
2012
* 2013

Source: Municipal Tax Collector

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

EXHIBIT J-7

*  The Borough underwent a revaluation effective calendar year 2013

&3

LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaudited)
(rate per §100 of assessed value)
Overlapping Rates
Total Direct Total Direct and
School Tax Regional Municipal Overlapping Tax
Rate Schoot District Municipality Library County Rate
8 0.654 $ 0.453 $ 1.120 0.315 $ 2.542
0.775 0.492 1.175 0.341 2,783
0.903 0.536 1.288 0.333 3.060
0.903 0.336 1.279 0.341 3.059
0.994 0.588 1.476 0.447 3.505
1.041 0.593 1.688 0.504 3.828
1.090 0.636 1.727 0.548 4,001
1.135 0.617 1.683 3 0.083 0.495 4.015
1,169 0.634 1.767 0.078 0.497 4.145
0.553 0.297 0.880 0.033 0219 1.982
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EXHIBIT J-9
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

L.AST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
Fiscal Collected within the Fiscal Year
Year Taxes Levied of the Levy Collections in
Ended for the Fiscal Percentage Subsequent
June 30, Year Amount of Levy Years

2004 $ 6,219,059 $ 6,219,059 100.00%
2005 6,811,889 6,811,889 100.00%
2006 8,176,340 8,176,340 100.00%
2007 8,882,985 8,882,985 100.00%
2008 9,052,968 9,052,968 100.00%
2009 9,649,076 9,649,076 100.00%
2010 10,036,147 10,036,147 100.00%
2011 10,423,999 10,423,999 100.00%
2012 10,601,303 10,601,303 100.00%
2013 10,759,913 10,759,913 100.00% .

Source: District Records
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EXHIBIT J-11
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS
(Unaudited) '

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Fiscal Percentage of
Year General Net General Actual Taxable
Ended Obligation Bonded Debt Value * of
June 30, Bonds Deductions QOutstanding Property Per Capita b
2005 § 24,447,000 $ 24,447,000 2.32% § - 4115
2006 24,447,000 24,447,000 2.49% 4,126
2007 23,862,000 23,862,000 2.45% 4,033
2008 23,247,000 23,247,000 2.39% 3,897
2009 22,607,000 22,607,000 2.34% 3,768
2010 21,937,000 21,937,000 2.29% 3,621
2011 21,237,000 21,237,000 2.27% 3,462
2012 20,507,000 20,507,000 2.23% 3,325
2013 19,742,000 19,742,000 0.98% 3,124

Source: District records

Notes:
a See Exhibit J-6 for property tax data.
b See Exhibit J-14 for population data.

Note:

GASB requires that ten years of statistical data be presented. As a result of the implementation of GASE No. 44

in fiscal year 2006 only nine years of information is available. Each year thereafter, an additional year's data will be
included untii ten years of data is present. '
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

EXHIBIT J-12

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012
(Unaudited}
Gross Debt Deductions Net Debt
Municipal Debt: (1)
Carlstadt Board of Education 3 20,507,000 $ 20,507,000
Regional School District (Carlstadt & East Rutherford) 3,128,454 3,128,454
Borough of Carlstadt 14,039,588 2,236,000 $ 11,803,588
$ 37,675,042 $ 25,871,454 11,803,588
Overlapping Debt Apportioned to the Municipality:
Bergen County:
County of Bergen (A) 10,014,023
Bergen County Utilities Authority - Water Pollution (B) 2,757,145
12,771,168
Total Direct and Overlapping Debt $ 24,574,756

Source:
(1) Borough of Carlstadt's 2012 Aanual Debt Statement

(A) The debt for this entity was apportioned to the Borough of Carlstadt by dividing the municipality's 2012

equalized value by the total 2012 equalized value for Bergen County,
(B) Overlapping debt was computed based upon municipal flow to the Authority.
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EXHIBIT J-14

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
{Unaudited)
County Per
Capita Personal Unemployment

Year Population Income Rate
2004 5,932 § 54,462 3.0%
2005 5,941 56,706 3.1%
2006 5,925 62,714 3.3%
2007 5,916 67,394 3.0%
2008 5,965 68,227 3.9%
2009 5,999 63,198 7.0%
2010 6,059 65,486 7.20%
2011 6,134 66,096 7.10%
2012 6,168 N/A 7.20%
2013 6,319 N/A N/A

N/A - Not Available

Source: New Jersey State Department of Education
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS,

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO

{Unaudited)

2013

EXHIBIT J-15

2004

Percentage of

Percentage of

Total Total
Municipal Municipal
Employer Employees Employment Employees Employment
Allied Beverages N/A NOT AVAILABLE
Caca-Cola N/A
Thumann's N/A
Impact Clothing N/A
Cadent-Ortho N/A
Medi/media N/A
Manhattan Products N/A
Sun Chemical N/A
Nash Distributors N/A
Water-Jel N/A
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UANDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES - REQUIRED
MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES

11-000-261-XXX
Project # (s)
School Fagilities
Lincoln Elementary School
Lindbergh Elesnentary School
Washington Middle School
Caristadt School Public School

Grand Total

Source: District Records

Source: School District's financiat statements

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

EXHIBIT J-19

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE FOR SCHOOL FACILITIES
LAST TEN YEARS
{Unaundited)
2004 2003 2006 2007 008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
11,532 § 11,684 § 12,268
10,986 4,368
27,029 12,749 12,442 i
- - - § 15600 § 9726 § 27612 § 29770 § 38954 § 42,399 3 60,625

49547 § 28801 § 24710 § 15600 § 9726 § 27612 $§ 29770 B 38954 § 42399 § 60625
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CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE
JUNE 30,2013
(Unaudited)
Coverage
Property *
Blanket Buildings and Contents $ 27,247,008
Commercial General Liability * 3 1,000,000/
$ 2,000,000
Employers Liability $ 1,000,000
Automobile * 3 1,000,000
Commercial Umbrella $ 1,000,000
Selective Way Insurance b 9,000,000
Fireman's Fund Insurance Co. $ 50,000,000
Boiler and Machinery*® 3 250,000
$ 5,000
Education Legal Liability/Employment Practices Liability
Darwin Insurance Co. $ 1,000,000
Excess & Special Risk
(Terrorism)
American Alternative Insurance Co. $ 1,000,000
Public Employee Dishonesty * $ 400,000

* Selective Way Insurance Co.

Source: School District's records
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EXHIBIT J-20

Deductible

$5,000

$1,000

$ 1,000 comp.
$1,000 coll.

Primary Policies
First Umbrella Layer
Shared Pool Excess Layer

Shared Pool Limit
Deductible

$100,000 per Employee
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLF

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS . T
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
DIETER P. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY J. VINCL, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA

GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA, PSA

JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBCORAH K, LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA
DONNA L. JAPHET, CPA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA
JULIUS B. CONSONI, CPA, PSA . CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA

EDWARD N. KERE, CPA
LORIT. MANUKIAN, CPA, PSA
MARK SACO, CPA

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Carlstadt Board of Education
Carlstadt, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States and audit requirements prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State
of New Jersey, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Carlstadt Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Carlstadt Board of Education’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Carlstadt Board of Education’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinjon on the effectiveness of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

17-17 ROUTE 208 @ FAIR LAWN, NJ 07410  TELEPHONE (201) 791-7100 @ FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWW.LVHCPA.COM
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EXHIBIT K-1

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified,

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Carlstadt Board of Education’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and audit
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Carlstadt Board of Education in a separate report entitled,
“Auditor’s Management Report on Administrative Findings — Financial, Compliance and Performance” dated October 2,
2013.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not {o provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control or
on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Jocah Vine) @ M«‘ggm LLP

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP

Qv na L. Japhet
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314
Fair Lawn, New Jersey
October 2, 2013
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LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS,LLP

EXHIBIT K-2
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
REGISTERED MUNICIPAL ACCOUNTANTS
DIETER ¥ LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA ELIZABETH A. SHICK, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY 1. VINCI, CPA, RMA, PSA ANDREW PARENTE, CPA, RMA, PSA
GARY W. HIGGINS, CPA, RMA, PSA ROBERT W. HAAG, CPA. PSA
JEFFREY C. BLISS, CPA, RMA, PSA DEBORAH X. LERCH, CPA, PSA
PAUL J. LERCH, CPA, RMA, PSA RALPH M. PICONE, CPA, RMA, PSA
DONNA L, JAPEET, CPA, PSA DEBRA GOLLE, CPA
JULIUS B. CONSONE, CPA, PSA CINDY JANACEK, CPA, RMA

EDWARD N. KERE, CPA
LORIT. MANUKIAN, CPA, PSA

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR STATE PROGRAM; MARK SACO, CPA
REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT
ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE FINANCIAL
ASSISTANCE AS REQUIRED BY NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members

of the Board of Trustees
Carlstadt Board of Education
Carlstadt, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program

We have audited the Carlstadt Board of Education’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect
on each of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s major state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The
Carlstadt Board of Education’s major state programs are identified in the suramary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is tespensible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to
its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s major state
programs based on our audit of the fypes of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New
Jersey; and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and
State Aid. Those standards and Circulars require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Carlstadt
Board of Education’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

17-17 ROUTE 208 # FAIR LAWN, NI (7410 @ TELEPHONE €201) 791-7100 @ FACSIMILE (201) 791-3035
WWW.LVHCPA.COM

99



EXHIBIT K-2

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major State Program

In our opinion, the Carlstadt Board of Education complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major state programs for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Carlstadt Board of Education is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major state program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major state program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with New Jersey OMB
Circular 04-04, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Carlstadt Board of Education’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and cotrect, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compiiance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable -possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we¢
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of cur testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04,
Accordingly, this reportt is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance Reqaired by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04

We have aundited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Carlstadt Board of Education as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2013 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Board of Education’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated October 2, 2013, which contained unmodified opinions on those financial
statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of state financial assistance as required
by New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
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auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of state
financial assistance is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

5&&&% Vine! & iggg 1 1P

LERCH, VINCI & HIGGINS, LLP
ified Public Accountants
Public School Accountanis

N —
nna L. Japhet
Public School Accountant
PSA Number CS002314
Fair Lawn, New Jersey
Qctober 2, 2013

101




w01

SOUBJSISSY [BIDUBUL] 9181§ PUR SPIBMY [R12pa, JO sarmIpuadxy Jo anpayog a1 of szjop mAueduoooy 295

WPy 2[SUIg [BI9P] © O 193lqns 10U ST1010SIT U], (RI0N

(ozl'ed) § » - $ (LoU'sk) § +IT9 § 1669KE § [06'8Ef § - 3 - [ s - $ (e2l'er) § 0eLe $ spremy [213pa] [e10],
*
(L26'82) P (#96'7E] YL S ¥OL'FEL S8I'TLT - - - - (T9v°¢) 0£E6 uoeanpy 10 Jeunredac] ‘5 B0
*
- P - - 685%9 68579 - - E - - - 685'9 [AN T AT CIOFPLOVEQE  €L1F8 [ooyasaLg VEQ]
* FOLLEL FOLLEL POL'LEL SUTER-TI/ /6 CIOVLOVA  £Z0F8 g 1= vEdI
+ Lez - LET [A8a O/1£/8-60/1/6  OIOPLOSTON  V981't8 ALRLL 90N
* o1 ol 32 OI/1E/8-60/1/6  OLOPLOSTION  VS9EH8 HI=IL 419N
N S B S $6T'E LU/1E/2-0L/ 16 LIOFLOSTON  VSOE'HS 1 2L 870N
* 4 44 6% TVIER- LG TIORLOETON  VE9EHR T 2L €N
(559'6 * (559°5) 559°C $69°e CI1E/8-21/1/6 CIOPLOSTON  VERE'+S (9L ETON
* 95t'8 (9¢+°3} {sc'8) . 9ty £59°9t TIAEE-11/1/6 TIORLOETION  VESE'HR Y -IIRRL €TON
{£9L77) * (¥9£7¢) 19s £L61T oigst (95t'8) 953 E{E8 41 UIE/EZIE CIOPLOSTON  VL9E'43 V119 10N
» I9L'sT £b9 [TaE (€p7° 1) , {s06°LT) 009 § szonL LTS TIOVLOETION  VOIO'P8 T9BLL €T
(65528} - (sp6'LT) 98ES  $  9ERPY 0TE'TY [€x253] $ (evT'1) 3 €Tl 3 TT9°69 LIH8TVE CIOFLOETION  VOLO'vR 120LL 8T0M
* PUY STCoASY TE55a%
M HONEINPY jO
» e redag M e3g g8eosg-passey
> wogzedRpy Jo 3uawnrredag gy
*
(eprel) * - {ev1°cD) - L6111 6901 - - - B (0r9°5) - sxyoudy 3o jusunredaq ‘g (816,
N .
(€69) I {563) - - - - - - - (¢69) - 1Z89 TUOER-11/1/6 Y/IN BIUTISISSY YsED)
(108) * {log} PCHG £59°8 7556 EL/OL/9-TY 146 YiN ATUEISISSY USE])
. £56°01 WerE01] $EOEaId [00Y0S [BUOTIBN
(919) . {31¢} TTL'E 90t'€ 90%°C EL/0E/9-TI/1/6 ViIN JIUBISISSY YSED)
* $65°01 0102 Jo 13y spry salg-2Sunp WeeH
(Spa't) * {sv6't) (sv6'p) £00°8L 0L L1/ 1/6 ¥IN BOUEISISSY YSE)
(98€'9) § {s8¢%9) 3 8T6'78 TFS9L 8T6°T8 EL/0E/9-TH16 YIN IDUBYSISSY USE))
+ 6091 5 €6091 £65°91 TUOE-L1LG V/IN (UONNGINSLEE POOL) SOURSISTY USE)-UON
* 566701 wrerfon] Youn [eoysg feudnen
* PULg uwmkauuﬁm
* :a_uduzﬂmhc
) juawrprdag Merg yAnoayy-passey
. axmnan Sy Jo Jwaunsedaq "§
N
E N B E N B e N = - E (E20°7) E purty [esauel) 0],
»
- N - - e B TWT % B - B - (Z2077) H B LSl §  TUHOL6LUIL puny sqof uoneanpy
- PR (1905
«

AAeAIIIY 4 ELoiticiry) Qzﬁmﬁuom QMUIAIY mo‘_gmu:vmxm Pealaday Eu:b.ms.._v{ AAARAIRITY JMOIryY pioleicaiy) EBmiuuuM SMUIATY JUITOUIY DOLIL ASQUITIN «uu_GHM Jagauiny sii O
dvvD . o angg SIUNIOO3Y} peuresur]  AmgeBpng yse) supy IDA0LED) o3 angy SIUNEY) pawreauy prRAY eIy 81€1§ 0 R YVID  J0NR) YSNON -SSeJ/I01RInjRIapa]
QWA - [e1opag

£107 ‘O o[ eourieyg . Z10Z "0f 2unf "2duejeg

£10Z “0€ INNL CIANT HVIAA TYISI AHL HO4
STAYMY TVIHAIL SO THALKINISXT JO TTATHIS
NOILYOA 40 MIVOd LEVISTIVD

€3 LIgIHXE



€0l

QOURISISSY [RIOURUI] SIBIS PUE SPIBMY [RI5D2] JO saunupuadied 1o ajnpayog 01 smon Suilueduiosoy 595

658140 § (SI89L) § - ¢ (pol'ezl)  § - $ 65819 $ SEL'RES $ § (cv0'08) S

(FER11LE) - - - - (PeS11E) (E8°11E) - PERTLE SRS TIUL  100-6605-PE0-S6FE1

(z66°152) (z66°197) (z66'197) 66192 ELOE9TULL  900-5605-PE0-56b-E1

(t3L'el) {F8L'cl) (r3L'cl) PRLEL ELOE-TUL  LDO-S605-bE0-564-E1

6OF°65T1 {s1gon} - {ko1°ez1) - - £95°65C°L BYE'9TTT - {ep0'06}

6T°€ {ce9) E (5£9) - - L6TE 958 - [C3Y]

- {pel) - {r61) - - - (F51) sil'e ZUOES-TUI/L  £T0-0S5€-010-001-2L

LeT'c {1vt) {1pt) L6T°E 958'T LGT'E ELOS/STII/L ETG-0SEE-010-00(-€L

TLU9STL (03191 - @57 - - ZLTOEET v ez | - (&¥863)

E - - - - B TESST {1eco1) 998°61€ TUOE-TI//L T00-560S-E0-S6v-T1

Y18°6TE (0g1%1) 3 (031°91) F1R'6ZE PEO'EIE 18'6ZE CL/OE/-TUIN  TO0-C60S-4E0-S6iEL

PESTIE FESTIE PERILE e8I IE SUOES-TUIAL  L00-S60S-$E0-S6HE1

766'19T 766'19Z 266°192 T66'192 CUOE/STIIL  S00-SE0§-FE0-SEHEL

¥8LEL .7 % [ZIAA $8L°€1 SUOEG-TUIAL  LOO-SE0S-FE0-S6H€l
- 950TL (950°CL) 950°ZL TLOER-TUIL  BOROZLS-HE0-S6tTl

ITL'86 (Z7L'36) TUL'86 TTL'SS SUOE/STUIL  PHO-OZ1S-HE0-S6I-EL

29Tl (zoT'1} $ B8TO'BLI TUOES-TYIN  B80R0TIS-FE0-S61Tl

FOEFIZ (018%9) FOL'FIT P65°LOT POERIT ELDESCULL 680-0ZLS-FE0-S64EL

LeL'Lt (¥95) LSLLT £61°L1 LSLLl ELOESZUIN  PROOTIS-FE0-SE-E]

596°L $ (esz) $ S96'L s It $ £96°L § ELOESTULL  PI0-0TIS-bE0-56tEL

SEIPUSENE  S[EASSSY TETUEy EerEssy SOUSASY sowEfeg SIPTIRY PRRETY OOy oA ESe fitigairiaty poTiEg QU 0T

oL ELALS) o} ang] SIUNOOIY) patreaun) §083 3 10114 Areolpng yse) Ianofim) “aoueEg preMYy Wwein SIRIF 10 WLy
SAnRiULND Jo purgay
O £10T "0¢ sun{ “souereq

€102 ‘9€ ANF QEANT HVIA TVISI IHL 30
HINVLSISSY TYIONYNIA SLVLS 4O STINLIGNIEXE 40 ATATIHIS
NOLLYONAH 40 QdVOod LaVESTHVY

b= LIgIHX3

npny 218w o1 1valqng 20UrISISSY [RIOUBLLL] STRIS 2101

SUOHINQLINOS) [RPLIA UAWRNSY-150] IV L JRYRE-S0
AT panINoY pUe [EULON Y41 JB49g-G0
IDDN-SULHNGIINOD) WBlSAT Uoisuad J¥J1 JEyeg-10

T ERG

UORRUANIAR NPRY A[3mg 0 19afqng 0N

AINBISISTY |FEIUTULY G
JOURISISSY [RISUBUL] FR1S [0,
punj ssudiaiueg [E10]

umifozg yaun jooysg [EUOnEN

wresBolf Youn [00Yag [BucnEN
DU SRR

amynady jo juaureda(g aeIg

puny [wRUen [F10]

SUOUNGINUOY)

Aunoag [B00g Y4l pasinguuray
SEONNGLIU0D)

Aunoag (81005 JV4 [ pasinguiey
([e0Ipapy WUSWANIaY 1504) SUORNqUIU0))

WAISAS BGOSR JV L JBY2E-UD
AR PALIDOY PuB $1500) [BUDON

SUOUNUEIO)) WlSAS vosuag JV L JRYG-UD

1DDN sUonnqLue)y
wayshg uolsuag J¥4L HeYH-10
pry Aruiproenxy
pry Areutproenxy
Py [eauoBate]) voneanpy Eoeds
piy [eonoBete]) uonyeonpy [ewadg
pry Ajmseg
Pry uoneHodsuel |,
PR [ERUEET

wopeInpy jo juampeda Nmg

F] WEIB01/I010eITy 5188



CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE ! GENERAL

The accompanying schedules present the activity of all federal and state financial assistance programs of the Carlstadt Board
of Education. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1(A) to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal financial
assistance received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards and state fisancial assistance passed through
other government agencies is included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance.

NOTE 2 BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules are prepared and presented using the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of
programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of
accounting are described in Notes 1(C) to the Board's basic financial statements. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with requirements of U.S, OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Nop-
Profit Organizations” and New Jersey OMB Circular 04-04, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State
Grants, and State Aid”. Therefore, some amounts presented in these schedules may differ from the amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison
statements or schedules (RSI) are presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related
legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas
for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made,

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on a modified accrual basis with the exception of the revenue
recognition of the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-
44.2.. For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral and
recording of certain state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying
schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the
related revenues, which may include the delayed state aid payments, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue
fund also recognizes the delayed state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S. A. 18A:22-44.2,

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is a decrease of $33,031 for the general fund
and a decrease of $37 for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
recouciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special revenue funds.
Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial statements on a GAAP basis as
presented as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $ 1,223,141 § 1,223,141
Special Revenue Fund $ 234,757 234,757
Food Service Fund 112,197 3,297 115,494
Total Financial Assistance $ 346,954 % 1,226,438 % 1,573,392
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EXHIBIT K-5
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF
FEDERAL AWARDS AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 4 RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules may not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the related federal
and state financial reports due to timing differences between the District’s fiscal year and grant program yeats.

NOTE 5 OTHER INFORMATION

Revenues and expenditures reported under the National School Lunch Program as non-cash assistance represent current year
value received and current year distributions, respectively of the Federal Food Distribution Program. TPAF Social Security
contributions in the amount of $329,814 represents the amount reimbursed by the State for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. The amount reported as TPAF Pension
System Contributions in the amount of $275,776 and TPAF Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions in the amount
of $311,834 represents the amount paid by the State on behalf of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013.

NOTE 6 ON-BEHALF PROGRAMS NOT SUBJECT TO STATE SINGLE AUDIT
On-behalf State Programs for TPAF Pension and Post-Retirement Medical Benefits Contributions are not subject to a State
single audit and, therefore, are excluded from major program determination. The Schedule of State Financial Assistance

provides a reconciliation of State financial assistance reported in the District’s basic financial statements and the amount
subject to State single audit and major program determination.
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EXHIBIT K-6
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Part I — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on financial statements Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
1) Material weakness{es) identified? yes X no

2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are not _
considered to be material weakness(es)? ves X none reported

Noncompliance material to the basic financial
statements noted? yes X no

Federal Awards Section

Not Applicable
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EXHIBIT K-6

CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Part [ — Summary of Auditor’s Results

State Awards Section

Internal Countrol over compliance:
(1) Material weaknesses identified? ves X no
2) Were significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weakness(es)? ves X none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for
major programs Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with N.J. Circular Letter 04-047 yes X 1o

Identification of major state programs:

GMIS Number Name of State Program or Cluster
13-495-034-5095-002 Reimbursed TPAF Social Security
Coritributions

13-495-034-5120-089 Special Education Categorical Aid
13-495-034-5120-084 Security Aid
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

Type A and Type B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes X no
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EXHIBIT K-6
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONT’D)
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2013
Part 2 — Schedule of Financial Statement Findings
This section identifics the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, fraud, illegal acts, violations of provisions of
contracts and grant agreements and abuse related to the financial statements in accordance with government Auditing

Standards.

There are none.
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EXHIBIT K-6
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013
Part 3 — Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of noncompliance including

questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, as required by OMB Circular A-133 and New
Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04.

CURRENT YEAR FEDERAL AWARDS

Not Applicable

CURRENT YEAR STATE AWARDS

There are none.
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EXHIBIT K-7
CARLSTADT BOARD OF EDUCATION
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS
AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

This section identifies the status of prior-year findings related to the basic financial statements

and federal and state awards that are required to be repotted in accordance with Chapter 6.12 of
Government Auditing Standards, U.S. OMB Circular A-133 (section .315(a)(b)) and New Jersey OMB's
Circular 04-04.

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS

Finding 2012-1

Conditibn

During our tests of transactions, it was noted that the District misclassified equipment purchased in the
General Fund as Regular Instruction — General Supplies. In addition, the entire salary of the Supervisor of
Special Services is being charged to Child Study Teams despite certain aspects of the job functions of this
position are considered School Administration.

Current Status

Corrective action has been taken.
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